
 

 

The Loop - Morrow County Transportation 

Special Transportation Fund (STF) Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 

April 20th, 2021 at 3:00 pm 

 

 

1. Call to Order, Welcome, and Roll Call 

 

 Call to Order at 3:04 

 

Welcome 

Betty Gray 

Katie Imes 

Heidi Turrell 

Sheryll Bates - Chair 

Scott Green 

Darrell Green 

Aaron Palmquist – Vice Chair 

Karen Pettigrew 

 

2. Public Comment 

 No public comment 

 

3. Approve Minutes 

 Changes to Frankie Lazama-name change  

 

 January 19th, 2021 

 Approve motion by Aaron 2nd by Betty – Motion approved. 

 

4. Update -Transportation Coordinator, Katie Imes 

a. Covid-19 – CARES Needs-Based Grant 

Continue our current sanitations. CARES need grant will procure sanitation 

machines, etc: Amount of $142,000 no match necessary. Will go to BOC 

b. Ridership/Drivers 

• Short a driver in Heppner. We are advertising in several places. 

• Sheryll: Ridership Numbers? Quarterly Totals Are up 

• Betty: What do the vet canceled/denied mean? Denied is usually no drivers 

available. 

5. Budget 

a. Request to present in a readable format, here is a new spreadsheet. Any 

sugguestions or comments? 

b. Sheryll: Fixed Route Budget? The $45,000 is in there for planning 

c. Karen: Volunteer drivers, we have spent $3,000 so far? Most of our drivers 

are now paid drivers, only one of our drivers is a volunteer. 

d. Are the drives still free? Yes 



 

 

e. Any other questions? No more questions 

6. STF Application 

a. We will know more by the middle of May. Frank Thomas said to expect the 

same funding cycle as our last cycle. 

b. Carevan Contract Last Update in 2013. 

 

7. Other Business 

a. FY 21-22 Operating Plan Draft - Here is our updated draft, any questions? 

None: Motion to take to the BOC by Aaron, motion 2nd by Betty Gray. 

Motion Carried.  You will see that we have added to 2 days to the holiday 

schedule for staff trainings in the Fall & Spring 

8. STF Committee Membership- Three Vacancies to be filled 

a. We have several openings, looking in Boardman & Lexington. Will call city 

hall, or go to a city hall meeting. 

 

 

Good of the Order 

Nothing to add for the good of the order 

 

Next Meeting:  

July 20th, 2021 Location: To be announced 

 

Adjourn 

Adjourned at 3:26 

 



 

 

THE LOOP - MORROW CO. TRANSPORTATION 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

P.O. Box 495, Heppner, Oregon 97836                 Katie Imes:  Transportation Coordinator 

Telephone: (541) 676-5667      

 1-855-644-4560 

 

 

 

 

Covid-19 Policy Update – June 16th, 2021 

 

With guidance from the Oregon Department of Transportation and Governor 

Browns Orders on April 27, 2021 Morrow County – The Loop is following all 

requirements concerning Covid-19.   

 

Public Transit Providers are required to have all drivers and passengers wear a 

mask, unless there is a physical condition that prevents the passenger from 

wearing one, or the passenger is under the age of two years old. 

 

Public Transit Providers are required to allow six feet between the passengers 

and the driver, except during boarding and in assisting those with mobility 

devices and allow three feet of distance between the passengers. All 

passengers are required to sit in the back seat of the passenger minivans, 

unless a reasonable modification is determined. Plastic barriers between the 

driver and passengers will remain in place until further notice. 

 

 

The Loop – Morrow County Transportation is dedicated to the health of our 

drivers and passengers. These efforts to reduce the impact of Covid-19 will 

remain in effect until further notice. We appreciate your patience at this time.  

 

 

 

 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Katie Imes, - Transportation Coordinator 

 
  





HEPPNER

Jesse Husband

IRRIGON

Dixie Earle

Brenda Aliangan

Ron Aliangan

BOARDMAN

Phyllis Gilbertson

John Blazer

Contracted Services

Kayak -Irrigon

Riders -182

Service Days - 77

Good Shepard

CareVan

Trips - 

TOTAL QUARTERLY RIDES

JANUARY TO MARCH 2021
Current

Drivers

City Rides

The Loop Rides - April 2021

Boardman 73

Irrigon 139

Boardman 73

The Loop Rides - May 2021

City Rides

Boardman 70

Heppner 88

Total 300

Irrigon 88

Total 292

Heppner 134

The Loop Rides - June 2021

City Rides

847Quarterly Total

Irrigon 96

Heppner 86

Total 255



Total 5

Quarterly Total 13

Total 5

The Loop Rides - June 2021

Canceled 5

Denied 0

Denied 2

VETERAN CANCELATIONS/DENIED RIDES

APRIL TO JUNE 2021

The Loop Rides - April 2021

Canceled 2

Denied 1

Total 3

The Loop Rides - May 2021

Canceled 3



Other Requirements

Total Other Requirements

(12,731.00)$                  

 $                 (15,804.00)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES (234,231.58)$              

Amount Amount

Transfer Funds - Vehicle Reserve  $            15,804.00 

 $            30,108.00 Transfer Funds - 5310 Match to 504

Current Budget  YTD Actual 

Training/Mileage -$                       (250.00)$                     

(138.04)$                     

Main - Operating -$                       (21.34)$                       

Telephone/Data -$                       (30.00)$                       

MDT's

Total Materials & Services (71,079.85)$                

(1,780.60)$                  

Drivers Expense 500.00$                  -$                            

Morrow County - The Loop Budget 

216 - Special Transportation Fund

Transportation Fund Summary as of June 30th, 2021

For Fiscal Year 2020/2021                                                                     

REVENUE

EXPENDITURES

Fixed Route 170,370.00$           (20,542.50)$                

YTD Actual

YTD Actual

 $          364,544.00 

 $          280,470.00 

Starting Account Balance 389,569.29$               

Software

Electricity

(4,125.00)$                  

(1,216.19)$                  

(1,800.00)$                  

(669.00)$                     

(3,500.00)$                  

(1,200.00)$                  

Ending Account Balance 621,078.16$               

(28,535.00)$                

TOTAL REVENUE

25,000.00$             

-$                       

1,800.00$               

500.00$                  

26,500.00$             

5,500.00$               

3,000.00$               

1,000.00$               

13,500.00$             

1,800.00$               

500.00$                  

20,000.00$             

Registration & Dues

Insurance

(46,950.89)$                

(11,995.17)$                

(38,868.05)$                

(134,616.73)$              

Amount

(15,089.77)$                

(1,350.32)$                  

(471.25)$                     

(306.13)$                     

(2,601.69)$                  

(3,992.85)$                  

Outreach

Maintenance

Telephone

Mileage -$                       

3,900.33$                    $              3,000.00 

Dispatcher

10,000.00$             

500.00$                  

Current Budget

(22,271.16)$                

(26,526.63)$                

465,740.45$               

21,312.00$             

33,795.00$             

Personnel Amount

Current Budget

Amount

 YTD Actual 

Part-Time Drivers

Personnel Benefits

Total Personnel 

Fuel

AmountMaterials & Services

184,851.00$           

124,586.00$           

461,840.12$               

Reimbursements

  Subtotal

 STF Funds

STIF Funds

500.00$                  

-

GOHBI -$                       5,425.00$                   

35,791.51$                 

STF Discretionary 66,736.00$             -$                            

Amount

Investment Earnings

Current Budget

850,536.00$           

Office Expense

Bus Shed Rent

Miscellaneous

Volunteer Drivers

CareVan

Coordinator

Amount

67,700.00$             

670,600.00$           

-

45,000.00$             

Funding Streams

67,700.00$                 

303,363.00$               

42,407.00$                 

6,174.00$                   

979.61$                      

STIF Discretionary

HRTG - Veterans

Donations



Ending Account Balance 115,552.62$          

TOTAL REVENUE

-$                       

162,054.00$           Vehicle Replacement

AmountCapital Outlay Amount

-$                       

Current Budget

21,978.18$            

REVENUE

225 - STF Vehicle Reserve Fund

Morrow County - The Loop Budget 

Transportation Fund Summary as of June 30th, 2021

For Fiscal Year 2020/2021                                                                     

Starting Account Balance  $            93,574.44 

Funding Streams Amount

Investment Earnings

5,575.00$              

15,804.00$            

21,379.00$              Subtotal

Sale of Equipment

Transfer from other Fund

599.18$                 

Current Budget

15,804.00$             

Amount

15,804.00$             

EXPENDITURES

YTD Actual

 $          162,054.00 

-$                       

-$                       

Reserved for Future Expense

-$                       

 YTD Actual 

Vehicle - Category C

Vehicle - Category D

Vehicle - Category E

Total Expenditures 162,054.00$          



REVENUE

Morrow County - The Loop Budget 

504 - FTA Grant Fund

Transportation Fund Summary as of June 30th, 2021

For Fiscal Year 2020/2021                                                                     

Current Budget

224,628.00$           

21,173.00$              

Personnel Amount

Current Budget
Amount

EXPENDITURES

Amount

-$                           

Funding Streams Amount

Investment Earnings

12,265.10$              

39,916.10$               Subtotal

Total Materials & Services  $           (22,341.61)

Coordinator

Office Expense 2,500.00$                 -$                          

Driver Expense 12,000.00$              -$                          

Carevan/Ctuir 12,000.00$              (6,000.00)$               

YTD Actual

YTD Actual

 $             63,539.00 

 $           108,340.00 

Starting Account Balance (July 1st, 2020)  $             23,207.63 

(4,946.54)$               

(795.65)$                  

Maintenance

Publishing

TOTAL REVENUE

8,500.00$                 (3,575.00)$               

(20,474.18)$             

(42,745.54)$            

Tires

HRTG - Vets

304.09$                   

AmountMaterials & Services

42,366.00$              

Amount

Current Budget  YTD Actual 

Ending Account Balance (June 30, 2021) (15,926.58)$            

TOTAL  $               6,282.00 

Transfer to GF-IND Co  $                             -   

Other Requirements

Equipment 103,956.00$            (26,998.25)$             

Office Software -$                           -$                          

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

5311 - Grant 142,956.00$            -$                          

5310 - Dispatch Grant -$                           -$                          

STO Operating Grant 13,500.00$              -$                          

5310 - FTA 68,172.00$              27,651.00$              

Outreach Supplies 5,000.00$                 (615.55)$                  

Drug & Alcohol Testing 1,000.00$                 (405.00)$                  

HB 2017 Grant -$                           -$                          

5304 - Grant -$                           -$                          

Personnel Benefits

Total Personnel 

Transfer from STF - Match 12,731.00$               $              30,108.00 

 $                 1,000.00 

 $             31,108.00 13,035.09$             

7,172.00$                 

20,000.00$              

(22,271.36)$             

52,951.19$             

Maint. Vehicle -$                           (26.94)$                    

Misc. 3,000.00$                 -$                          

Fuel 14,668.00$              -$                          

Maint. Operating 20,000.00$              (5,976.93)$               

Telephone/Data 2,500.00$                 -$                          

 $           (92,085.40)

Current Budget  YTD Actual 

Capital Outlay Amount Amount

STF Vehicle -$                           -$                          

Total Capital Outlay 103,956.00$           (26,998.25)$            

 $                             -   

 $                             -   

 $                             -   

 $              42,376.00 

Transfer to STF  $                             -   

Transfer to STF Reserve  $                             -   

Contingency  $                6,282.00 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Operations Plan 
Fiscal Year 2021 & 2022 

 

 

 

THE LOOP - MORROW COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

THE LOOP – MORROW COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

Table of Contents 

Purpose And Goals ............................................................................................................................... 3 

Living Document ................................................................................................................................... 3 

Definitions .............................................................................................................................................. 4 

Holidays And Closures ........................................................................................................................ 6 

The Loop Advisory Committees ......................................................................................................... 7 

Section One: Existing Services ....................................................................................................... 9 

Demand Response: ................................................................................................................................ 9 

Medicaid Contract: ................................................................................................................................ 9 

Contracted Services .............................................................................................................................. 9 

Section Two: Known Opportunities ............................................................................................ 10 

Event Driven Services: ...................................................................................................................... 10 

Additional Service Opportunities:................................................................................................... 10 

Emergency Services: .......................................................................................................................... 10 

Section Three: Known Challenges And Opportunities ....................................................... 11 

Challenges: ........................................................................................................................................... 11 

Opportunities: ...................................................................................................................................... 11 

 



 

3 | P a g e  

 

PURPOSE AND GOALS 

This Annual Operations Plan describes the scope of work undertaken by The Loop – 

Morrow County Public Transportation, referred to in this document as The Loop, for 

the fiscal years of 2021-2022. The Loop is an intra-county and inter-county service 

for all residents and visitors of Morrow County. The Loop's geographic service area 

is primarily 2,047 square miles in Morrow County and makes frequent trips outside 

of the official service area to other requested locations. Our buses and vans are ADA 

compliant, and our drivers are trained in handling and securing mobile devices and 

assisting passengers with special needs. 

This document captures the anticipated breadth of services and forecasts 

opportunities and challenges (that reasonably can be anticipated). This document 

aims to provide a road map for the next year and guide the ongoing discussion about 

how public transportation is planned, deployed, and managed in Morrow County. 

This plan will be broken out into three sections, as follows:  

• Existing Services to be delivered (and any potential changes taking place). 

• Known project opportunities within the community (historically delivered, 

and new opportunities available). 

• Known opportunities or challenges that may occur in our method, means, or 

model of delivery. 

Appendixes of published support materials will follow these for all standard 

operating programs in Morrow County. 

 

LIVING DOCUMENT 

This document is our best forecast for the coming fiscal year. It should not be 

construed as limiting our response to opportunities or our options to resolve 

challenges. Moreover, it is intended to inform subsequent Annual Operations Plans 

while creating a historical record for future development. 

  



 

4 | P a g e  

 

DEFINITIONS 

While every effort has been made to keep this plan user-friendly, it is sometimes 

necessary to use an industry term to demonstrate compliance with regulations. This 

subsection is intended to help guide the reader when the following terms appear: 

ADA:  

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (and the amended 2008 AADA) prohibiting 

discrimination against individuals with disabilities in all areas. 

Curb-to-Curb:  

This term often applies to the Demand Response and Route Deviation modes of 

services. It means the passenger is responsible for getting themselves to and from 

the vehicle.  

Demand Response:  

Sometimes called Dial-a-Ride, Demand Response service is when a passenger 

makes a reservation in advance. A vehicle comes to their location to pick them up 

and deliver them to their requested location. This service often operates as Curb-to-

Curb. 

Deviated Route:  

Sometimes referred to as Route Deviations, this refers to a Fixed Route delivery 

strategy that allows the bus to temporarily leave the route to perform a Curb-to-

Curb pick-up within ¾ of a mile from the regular line traveled. This service must 

also be scheduled a day in advance. 

Dial-a-Ride:  

A passenger calls the transit center to schedule a ride at least a day in advance of 

their planned outing. See Demand Response for more information. 

Door-to-Door:  

Door-to-Door indicates that passenger assistance is available from the door of origin 

to the first door of the planned destination. This service may be requested verbally 

or in writing, and tailored to the passenger's need.  

 

 

 

 



 

5 | P a g e  

 

Flag Stop:  

Sometimes called a Flex Stop, this term refers to a passenger's ability to access a 

Fixed Route bus at points between formal stops by waving to the driver to indicate 

he or she wishes to board. 

Fixed Route:  

A Fixed Route system is a bus that follows a prescribed path on a published 

schedule. Passengers can access the formal bus stops, and the bus does not deviate 

from the indicated path unless traffic issues force it to divert from the normal route. 

Origin-to-Destination:  

This term, used in the ADA, is meant to remove barriers for passengers using the 

Dial-a-Ride service. It purposefully does not define the beginning and end of the trip 

to allow the terms of service to be designed by the passenger. The only limitations to 

this model imposed by The Loop are that our drivers will not enter the home of a 

passenger, and will not proceed beyond the main entryway of any destination. 

Paratransit:  

Sometimes called ADA Paratransit or Complementary Paratransit, this term refers 

to the obligatory service running alongside a Fixed Route bus line that provides 

equivalent service to those who are prevented from using the Fixed Route due to a 

disability. This service operates on a Dial-a-Ride model. 

Title VI:  

The Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination based on race, color, or 

national origin in any program or activity that receives Federal funds or other 

Federal financial assistance. 

  



 

6 | P a g e  

 

HOLIDAYS AND CLOSURES 

The Loop will observe the following Holidays during Fiscal Years 2021 and 2022. 

The Loop will have two dedicated all-staff training days one in the fall and spring. 

In most cases, services will be closed entirely. 

Independence Day ............................................................................... July 5th, 2021 

Labor Day ................................................................................. September 6th, 2021 

Veterans Day ........................................................................... November 11th, 2021 

Thanksgiving ........................................................................... November 25th, 2021 

Christmas ................................................................................ December 24th, 2021 

New Year's Day ............................................................................ January 1st, 2022 

Martin Luther King Jr. Day ...................................................... January 17th, 2022 

Presidents' Day .......................................................................... February 21st, 2022 

Memorial Day ................................................................................... May 30th, 2022 

Staff Training Day ....................................................................................... Fall 2021 

Staff Training Day .................................................................................. Spring 2022 

 

 

  



 

7 | P a g e  

 

THE LOOP ADVISORY COMMITTEES 

The Loop has two advisory committees, The Special Transportation Fund (STF) and 

the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF). 

The STF Advisory Committee is established in the interest of transit system users 

(seniors and people with disabilities of any age) in Morrow County. Its purpose is to 

advise the Morrow County Commissioners/The Loop on matters that pertain to the 

Special Transportation Fund and all issues regarding the transportation needs of 

those utilizing the transit system. The Advisory Committee will make 

recommendations that encourage and promote the accomplishments of those needs 

that directly affect the welfare of those who desire and/or require such services. 

 

Committee meetings are held quarterly- July, October, January, and April 

alternating between Boardman, Irrigon, and Heppner 

Members Minimum Members: 7 Maximum Members: 11 Term allowence: 4 years

NAMES TERM EXPIRATION

Vacancy 12/31/2020

Vacancy 12/31/2020

Vacancy 12/31/2020

Aaron Palmquist

Chair
12/31/2021

Betty Gray 12/31/2021

"George"

Virginia Nairns
12/31/2022

Karen Pettigrew 12/31/2022

Mike Jones 12/31/2022

Vancacy 12/31/2022

Katie Imes 12/31/2022

Sheryll Bates

Vice Chair
12/31/2024

Boardman/Sr.

Heppner/Sr.

Community Development

Trans. Coordinator

Heppner/Community

Boardman/Hispanic

Lexington/Community

Irrigon/Community

Ione/Senior

Heppner/Sr. & Disabled

The Loop Morrow County Co Transportation

Special Transportation Fund (STF) Advisory Committee

2021

REPRESENTING

Boardman/Hispanic



 

8 | P a g e  

 

The STIF Committee shall assist the Commissioners in tasks and duties supporting 

local and regional transportation services funded through the State Transportation 

Improvement Fund (STIF) and allocated to Morrow County for distribution to 

Public Transportation Service Providers within and adjacent to Morrow County. 

 

 

Committee meetings are held quarterly- July, October, January, and April 

alternating between Boardman, Irrigon, and Heppner. 

 
Note: STF and STIF plan to consolidate in the fiscal year 2023. For more information, go to 

https://www.oregon.gov/odot/RPTD/Pages/STF-STIF-Consolidation.aspx  

Members Minimum Members: 5 Maximum Members: 9 Term allowance: 3 years

NAMES TERM EXPIRATION

Betty Gray 6/30/2021

Aaron Palmquist

Chair
6/30/2021

Mike Jones 12/31/2022

Katie Imes 12/31/2022

Vacancy 12/31/2022

Karen Pettigrew 12/31/2023

Sheryll Bates 10/30/2024

Debbie Radie 

Vice Chair
12/31/2024

Scott Green 4/7/2024

Boardman/Low Income

Heppner/Seniors

Boardman Employers/Employees

Boardman/Transit Destinations 

Ione Seniors/Low Income

Irrigon/Low Income

Heppner/Seniors

County Staff Transportation

County Staff/Community

The Loop - Morrow County Public Transportation

Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund Advisory Committee 

2021

REPRESENTING

https://www.oregon.gov/odot/RPTD/Pages/STF-STIF-Consolidation.aspx


 

9 | P a g e  

 

Section One: Existing Services – The Loop is a no fare service 

Rides to Wellness/ Veteran Rides to Wellness: 

Serving Morrow County Veterans, Seniors, Person with Disabilities, Limited, or no 

Transportation. Ridership is available to any of Morrow County residents. 

Transportation for Veterans to medical facilities can be arranged by calling The 

Loop Office. Please tell the Dispatcher that you are a Veteran when booking the 

transportation.  

Demand Response: 

The Loop is a curb-to-curb service for residents of Morrow County. We operate on a 

first-call-first-serve basis. Trips for service need to be scheduled in advance. Service 

is offered Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. except for holidays or 

cancellations due to inclement weather. Trip times can be adjusted to meet earlier 

or later appointments or activities. Weekend trips may also be requested through 

The Loop Office when the trip meets the program purposes. 

Medicaid Contract: 

The Loop is contracted with Greater Oregon Behavioral Health, Inc. (GOBHI) to 

provide curb-to-curb, Non-Emergent Medical Transportation at no cost to riders 

eligible for transportation services through Oregon Medicaid. (Participants must 

have prior approval through the Oregon Medicaid Transportation Brokerage). 

Contracted Services: 

The Loop is contracted with CareVan Transportation providing service to residents 

in Boardman and Irrigon who have appointments at Good Shepherd Medical Group 

Facilities. This service is available during normal business hours at no charge.  

The Loop is contracted with Kayak Public Transit providing service to Irrigon. This 

service runs Monday-Saturday making an AM and PM stop. This is a fixed route 

giving access to Umatilla County at no charge; for more details, go to 

https://ctuir.org/media/4tdfb0ml/hopper.pdf 

The Loop operates its programs and services without regard to race, color, and 

national origin following Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Any person who 

believes she or he has been aggrieved by any unlawful discriminatory practice 

under Title VI may file a complaint with The Loop Office. 

  

https://ctuir.org/media/4tdfb0ml/hopper.pdf


 

10 | P a g e  

 

Section Two: Known Opportunities 

Event-Driven Services:  

Including the following, but not limited to the following options: 

1) Weekly Shopping Trips vs. Monthly 

Historically, The Loop has provided monthly trips to Hermiston for a day of 

shopping and dining. The Loop is exploring the option to convert to weekly trips 

that would give riders access to specific locations rather than one or two 

shopping locations.  

As an example: 

Week 1 – Safeway & Grocery Outlet 

Week 2 – Walmart & Dollar Tree 

Week 3 – Safeway & Bi-Mart 

Week 4 – Walmart & Dollar Tree 

These trips will have a route schedule and timeline.  

 

2) Event-Driven Opportunities 

a. Morrow County Fair & Rodeo 

b. St. Patrick's Festival 

c. Morrow County Harvest Festival 

d. Watermelon Festival 

e. Pendleton Roundup 

f. Umatilla County Fair & Rodeo 

These trips will have a route schedule and timeline.  

Additional Service Opportunities: 

3) Deviated Route Services 

a) Port of Morrow/Boardman Circulator 

b) Heppner/Boardman Connector 

c) Arlington/Boardman/Port of Morrow Connector 

The Loop is currently planning for expanding service to offer the Port of 

Morrow/Boardman Circulator. This route would connect with the 

Hermiston/Boardman Connector giving Morrow and Umatilla County 

residents access to employment, health services, and other public services.  

Emergency Services: 

In the event of a declared emergency, our services may be mobilized by County, 

State, or Federal emergency management officials. We will comply and prioritize 

such requests in the event we are called upon. 

  



 

11 | P a g e  

 

Section Three: Known Challenges and Opportunities 

Challenges:  

➢ Infrastructure – Bus Barns, Fleet Expansion, and Staffing. Currently, The Loop 

utilizes three bus barns, one County-owned in Heppner, one at the Boardman 

Senior Center, and one at the Irrigon Senior Center; all these barns are at 

capacity. With the demand for expanded services, particularly employment 

opportunities, shopping, and public services, the Loop is perusing many funding 

streams to enable the program to grow.  

Opportunities: Funding Sources - State and Federal 

➢ STIF Discretionary – State of Oregon 

• Capital Purchases – 5 buses and 1 passenger van 

• Planning Project – Bus Barn construction 

• Operating Expenses- to launch new route services 

 

➢ STIF Formula – State of Oregon 

• Outline projects to support existing services and expansion 

 

➢ STF Formula – State of Oregon 

• Operations- Demand Response Service 

 

➢ Section 5304 – Federal Transportation Administration 

• Planning Project – Update Morrow County Human Services 

Coordinated Transportation Plan 

 

➢ Section 5310 - Federal Transportation Administration 

• Administration, Purchased Services, Preventive Maintenance 

 

➢ Section 5339 FY 22/23 – Federal Transportation Administration 

• Bus Barn/Transit Facility, Capital Purchases 

 

➢ Highly Rural Transportation Grant – Oregon Department of Veterans Affairs 

• Administration, Operating Expenses 

 



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 34958

STATE

 

Page 1 of  16

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the State of Oregon, acting by and 
through its Department of Transportation, Public Transportation Division, hereinafter referred to as 
"State," and Morrow County, hereinafter referred to as "Recipient," and collectively referred to as 
the "Parties." Recipient is an "STF Agency" as that term is defined in OAR 732-005-0010.
 

 

AGREEMENT
1. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2021 or the 

date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law.  Unless 
otherwise terminated or extended, grant funds under this Agreement shall be available for 
eligible project costs incurred on or before June 30, 2023 (the "Expiration Date"). No grant 
funds are available for expenditures incurred after the Expiration Date.  State's obligation to 
disburse funds under this Agreement shall end as provided in Section 6.a. of this Agreement.

2. Agreement Documents. This Agreement consists of this document and the following 
documents, all of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit A: Project Description and Budget

Exhibit B: Financial Information

Exhibit C: Subagreement Insurance Requirements and Recipient Insurance 
Requirements

In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement, 
the language in the document with the highest precedence shall control. The precedence of 
each of the documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence 
to lowest precedence: this Agreement without Exhibits; Exhibit A; Exhibit B; Exhibit C.

3. Project Cost; Grant Funds.  State shall provide Recipient grant funds in an amount not to 
exceed  $135,400.00 (the "Grant Funds").   Recipient acknowledges and agrees that State 
may change the amount of funds available under this Agreement, based on availability of funds 
and other factors as determined by State, upon notification to Recipient in accordance with 
Section 11.g of this Agreement.  State and Recipient agree that in no event shall the amount 
State provides to Recipient be less than the Minimum Allocation determined as provided in 
OAR 732-010-0010. Recipient will be responsible for all Project costs not covered by the Grant 
Funds.  

4. Project.  The Grant Funds shall be used solely for the project described in Exhibit A (the 
"Project") and shall not be used for any other purpose.  No Grant Funds will be disbursed 
for any changes to the Project unless such changes are approved by State by amendment 
pursuant to Section 11.d hereof.

5. Progress Reports. Recipient shall submit quarterly progress reports to State no later than 
45 days after the close of each quarterly reporting period. Reporting periods are July through 
September, October through December, January through March, and April through June. 
Reports must be in a format acceptable to State and must be entered into the Oregon Public 
Transit Information System (OPTIS), which may be accessed at https://www.oregon.gov/
odot/RPTD/Pages/index.aspx. If Recipient is unable to access OPTIS, reports must be sent 
to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us. Reports shall include a statement of revenues and 
expenditures for each quarter, including documentation of local match contributions and 
expenditures. State reserves the right to request such additional information as may be 
necessary to comply with federal or state reporting requirements. 

6. Disbursement and Recovery of Funds.
a. Disbursement Generally. State shall make quarterly installment payments to Recipient 

within 30 days of the beginning of each calendar quarter described in Section 5. State 
shall determine the amount of each quarterly payment based on the funds stated in 
Section 3 divided by the number of calendar quarters for which payments are scheduled 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958
 

Page 2 of  16

to be made, with any adjustments as may be determined by State if funds are adjusted 
as provided in Section 3.

b. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement.  State's obligation to disburse funds to 
Recipient is subject to satisfaction, with respect to each disbursement, of each of the 
following conditions precedent:

i. State has received funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable 
administrative discretion, to make the disbursement.

ii. Recipient is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement.
iii. Recipient's representations and warranties set forth in Section 7 hereof are true 

and correct on the date of disbursement with the same effect as though made on 
the date of disbursement.

iv. Recipient has provided to State a request for reimbursement using a format that 
is acceptable to and approved by State. Recipient must submit its final request for 
reimbursement following completion of the Project and no later than  60 days after 
the Expiration Date. Failure to submit the final request for reimbursement within 
60 days after the Expiration Date could result in non-payment.

v. Any audit findings relating to Recipient's use of funds under this Agreement or any 
other agreement with State have been resolved.

c. Recovery of Funds
i. Recovery of Misexpended Funds or Nonexpended Funds. Any funds disbursed to 

Recipient under this Agreement that are either (i) disbursed but unexpended 
as of the Expiration Date ("Unexpended Funds") or (ii) expended in violation or 
contravention of one or more of the provisions of this Agreement ("Misexpended 
Funds") must be returned to State. Recipient shall return all Misexpended Funds 
to State no later than 15 days after State's written demand. Recipient shall return 
all Unexpended Funds to State within 15 days after the earlier of expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.

ii. Recovery of Funds upon Termination. If this Agreement is terminated under either 
Section 10(a)(i) or Section 10(a)(v) below, Recipient shall return to State all funds 
disbursed to Recipient within 15 days after State's written demand for the same.

7. Representations and Warranties of Recipient.  Recipient represents and warrants to State 
as follows:

a. Organization and Authority.  Recipient is duly organized and validly existing under 
the laws of the State of Oregon and is eligible to receive the funds. Recipient has full 
power, authority, and legal right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its 
obligations hereunder, and the making and performance by Recipient of this Agreement 
(1) have been duly authorized by all necessary action of Recipient and (2) do not and 
will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any 
court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision 
of Recipient's Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, if applicable, (3) do not and will not 
result in the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other 
agreement or instrument to which Recipient is a party or by which Recipient or any of 
its properties may be bound or affected. No authorization, consent, license, approval 
of, filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or 
supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by Recipient 
of this Agreement.

b. Binding Obligation.  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by 
Recipient and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Recipient, enforceable in 
accordance with its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar 
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally.

c. No Solicitation.  Recipient's officers, employees, and agents shall neither solicit nor 
accept gratuities, favors, or any item of monetary value from contractors, potential 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958
 

Page 3 of  16

contractors, or parties to subagreements, except as permitted by applicable law. No 
member or delegate to the Congress of the United States or State of Oregon employee 
shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or any benefit arising therefrom.

d. No Debarment.  Neither Recipient nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, or 
voluntarily excluded from any federally-assisted transaction, or proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participating in this Agreement by any 
state or federal agency. Recipient agrees to notify State immediately if it is debarred, 
suspended or otherwise excluded by any state or federal agency or if circumstances 
change that may affect this status, including without limitation upon any relevant 
indictments or convictions of crimes. 

 

The warranties set in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other warranties 
set forth in this Agreement or implied by law.

8. Records Maintenance and Access; Audit.
a. Records, Access to Records and Facilities. Recipient shall make and retain proper 

and complete books of record and account and maintain all fiscal records related to 
this Agreement and the Project in accordance with all applicable generally accepted 
accounting principles, generally accepted governmental auditing standards and state 
minimum standards for audits of municipal corporations. Recipient shall require that 
each of its subrecipients and subcontractors complies with these requirements. State, 
the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon (Secretary), the United States Department 
of Transportation (USDOT), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and their duly 
authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, papers and 
records of Recipient that are directly related to this Agreement, the funds provided 
hereunder, or the Project for the purpose of making audits and examinations. In addition, 
State, the Secretary, USDOT, FTA and their duly authorized representatives may make 
and retain excerpts, copies, and transcriptions of the foregoing books, documents, 
papers, and records. Recipient shall permit authorized representatives of State, the 
Secretary, USDOT and FTA to perform site reviews of the Project, and to inspect all 
vehicles, real property, facilities and equipment purchased by Recipient as part of the 
Project, and any transportation services rendered by Recipient.

b. Retention of Records.  Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, 
papers, and records that are directly related to this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, records relating to capital assets funded by this Agreement, the funds or the 
Project for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer period as may be required by 
other provisions of this Agreement or applicable law, following the Expiration Date. If 
there are unresolved audit questions at the end of the six-year period, Recipient shall 
retain the records until the questions are resolved. 

c. Expenditure Records.  Recipient shall document the expenditure of all funds disbursed 
by State under this Agreement.  Recipient shall create and maintain all expenditure 
records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in sufficient 
detail to permit State to verify how the funds were expended.

d. Audit Requirements.
i. Recipient shall, at Recipient's own expense, submit to State, Public Transportation 

Division, 555 13th Street NE, Suite 3, Salem, Oregon, 97301-4179 or to 
ODOTPTDreporting@odot.state.or.us, a copy of, or electronic link to, any annual 
audit covering the funds expended under this Agreement by Recipient or a   
party to any subagreement with Recipient, as well as the annual audit of any 
subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s) of Recipient responsible for the 
financial management of funds received under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall save, protect and hold harmless State from the cost of any audits 
or special investigations performed by the Secretary with respect to the funds 
expended under this Agreement. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that any audit 
costs incurred by Recipient as a result of allegations of fraud, waste or abuse are 
ineligible for reimbursement under this or any other agreement between Recipient 
and State.



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958
 

Page 4 of  16

 

This section 8 shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement.
9. Recipient Subagreements and Procurements

a. Subagreements.  Recipient may enter into agreements with sub-recipients, contractors 
or subcontractors (collectively, "subagreements") for performance of the Project.

i. All subagreements must be in writing executed by Recipient and must incorporate 
and pass through all of the applicable requirements of this Agreement to the other 
party or parties to the subagreement(s). Use of a subagreement does not relieve 
Recipient of its responsibilities under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall require all of its contractors performing work under this Agreement 
to name State as a third-party beneficiary of Recipient's subagreement with the 
contractor and to name State as an additional or "dual" obligee on contractors' 
payment and performance bonds.

iii. Recipient shall provide State with a copy of any signed subagreement, as well as 
any other purchasing or contracting documentation, upon request by State. This 
Paragraph 9.a.iii. shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

iv. Recipient must report to State any material breach of a term or condition of a 
subagreement within ten (10) days of Recipient discovering the breach.

b. Subagreement Indemnity; Insurance.

i. Recipient's subagreement(s) shall require the other party to such 
subagreements(s) that is not a unit of local government as defined in ORS 
190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless State and 
its officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims, 
actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys' 
fees, arising from a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260, 
caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or 
willful acts or omissions of  the other party to Recipient's subagreement 
or any of such party's officers, agents, employees or subcontractors 
("Claims"). It is the specific intention of the Parties that the State shall, 
in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or 
willful acts or omissions of the State, be indemnified by the other party to 
Recipient's subagreement(s) from and against any and all Claims.

ii. Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Recipient's subrecipient(s), 
contractor(s) nor subcontractor(s) (collectively "Subrecipients"), nor any attorney 
engaged by Recipient's Subrecipient(s), shall defend any claim in the name of 
the State or any agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal 
representative of the State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior 
written consent of the Oregon Attorney General. The State may, at any time at its 
election, assume its own defense and settlement in the event that it determines 
that Recipient's Subrecipient is prohibited from defending State or that Recipient's 
Subrecipient is not adequately defending State's interests, or that an important 
governmental principle is at issue or that it is in the best interests of State to 
do so. State reserves all rights to pursue claims it may have against Recipient's 
Subrecipient if State elects to assume its own defense.

iii. Recipient shall require the other party, or parties, to each of its subagreements 
that are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003 to obtain and 
maintain insurance of the types and in the amounts provided in Exhibit C to 
this Agreement. Recipient may specify insurance requirements of its contractor(s) 
above the minimum insurance requirements specified in Exhibit C. Recipient shall 
verify its contractor(s) meet the insurance requirements in Exhibit C.

c. Procurements.  Recipient shall make purchases of any equipment, materials, or 
services for the Project under procedures that comply with Oregon law, as applicable, 
including all applicable provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code and rules. 

i. All applicable clauses required by federal statute, executive orders and their 
implementing regulations are included in each competitive procurement;



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958
 

Page 5 of  16

ii. All procurement transactions are conducted in a manner providing full and open 
competition.

d. Conflicts of Interest. Recipient's public officials shall comply with Oregon's government 
ethics laws, ORS 244.010 et seq., as those laws may be subsequently amended.

10. Termination
a. Termination by State.  State may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of 

written notice of termination to Recipient, or at such later date as may be established 
by State in such written notice, if:

i. Recipient fails to perform the Project within the time specified herein or any 
extension thereof or commencement, continuation or timely completion of the 
Project by Recipient is, for any reason, rendered improbable, impossible, or illegal; 
or

ii. State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure 
authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement; or

iii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in 
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding 
under this Agreement; or

iv. The Project would not produce results commensurate with the further expenditure 
of funds; or

v. Recipient takes any action pertaining to this Agreement without the approval of 
State and which under the provisions of this Agreement would have required the 
approval of State.

b. Termination by Recipient.  Recipient may terminate this Agreement effective upon 
delivery of written notice of termination to State, or at such later date as may be 
established by Recipient in such written notice:

i. Upon notification to State of its desire to withdraw from eligibility to receive the 
funds and providing to State a reason acceptable to State for the withdrawal; or

ii. If federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted 
in such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding 
under this Agreement.

c. Termination by Either Party.  Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon at 
least ten days' notice to the other Party and failure of the other Party to cure within the 
period provided in the notice, if the other Party fails to comply with any of the terms 
of this Agreement.

11. General Provisions
a. Contribution. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding 

alleging a tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against 
State or Recipient with respect to which the other Party may have liability, the notified 
Party must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver 
to the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to 
the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third Party 
Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by a 
Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and meaningful opportunity for 
the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third Party 
Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to that Party's liability 
with respect to the Third Party Claim.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which State is jointly liable with Recipient (or would 
be if joined in the Third Party Claim), State shall contribute to the amount of expenses 
(including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion as is appropriate 
to reflect the relative fault of the State on the one hand and of the Recipient on the other 
hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958
 

Page 6 of  16

settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative 
fault of State on the one hand and of Recipient on the other hand shall be determined 
by reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to 
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. State's contribution amount in any 
instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, 
including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole liability 
in the proceeding.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with State (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the amount of 
expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement 
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State in such proportion as is 
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of State on the 
other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, 
fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. 
The relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of State on the other hand shall be 
determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, 
access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in 
such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. Recipient's contribution amount 
in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon 
law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability 
in the proceeding.

b. Liability of Recipient; Indemnification.
i. Recipient shall defend, save, hold harmless, and indemnify the State, the 

Oregon Transportation Commission, ODOT, and its officers, employees and 
agents from and against all claims, suits, actions, proceedings, losses, 
damages, liabilities, awards and costs of every kind and description 
(collectively, "Claim") which may be brought or made against State by 
a third party arising out of or related to any personal injury, death or 
property damage caused by any alleged act, omission, error, fault, mistake 
or negligence of Recipient or its officers, employees or agents arising out 
of or related to this Agreement. Recipient's obligation under this Section 
shall not extend to any claim primarily caused by the negligent or willful 
misconduct of State.

ii. Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Recipient, nor any 
attorney engaged by Recipient, shall defend any claim in the name of the 
State or any agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal 
representative of the State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the 
prior written consent of the Oregon Attorney General. The State may, at 
any time at its election, assume its own defense and settlement in the 
event that it determines that Recipient is prohibited from defending State 
or that Recipient is not adequately defending State's interests, or that 
an important governmental principle is at issue or that it is in the best 
interests of State to do so. State reserves all rights to pursue claims it may 
have against Recipient if State elects to assume its own defense.

iii. Sections 11.b.i. and 11.b.ii shall survive termination of this Agreement.
c. Insurance. Recipient shall meet the insurance requirements within Exhibit C.
d. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended or extended only by a written 

instrument signed by both Parties and approved as required by applicable law.
e. Duplicate Payment.  Recipient is not entitled to compensation or any other form of 

duplicate, overlapping or multiple payments for the same work performed under this 
Agreement from any agency of the State of Oregon or the United States of America or 
any other party, organization or individual.

f. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  State and Recipient are the only Parties to this 
Agreement and are the only Parties entitled to enforce its terms.  Nothing in this 
Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958
 

Page 7 of  16

or right, whether directly or indirectly, to a third person unless such a third person is 
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as an intended beneficiary 
of the terms of this Agreement.

Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the Federal Government, absent express written 
consent by the Federal Government, is not a party to this Agreement and shall not be 
subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Recipient, contractor or any other party 
(whether or not a party to the Agreement) pertaining to any matter resulting from this 
Agreement.

g. Notices.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any 
communications between the Parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be 
given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, email, or mailing the same, postage 
prepaid, to Recipient Contact or State Contact at the address or number set forth 
on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other addresses or numbers as 
either Party may hereafter indicate pursuant to this Section 11.g. Any communication 
or notice personally delivered shall be deemed to be given when actually delivered. 
Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed to be given when 
receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine, and to be effective 
against State, such facsimile transmission must be confirmed by telephone notice to 
State Contact. Any communication by email shall be deemed to be given when the 
recipient of the email acknowledges receipt of the email. Any communication or notice 
mailed shall be deemed to be given when received.  

h. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles 
of conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between 
State (or any other agency or department of the State of Oregon) and Recipient that 
arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and 
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County in the State of Oregon. In no event 
shall this section be construed as a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense 
or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on 
the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any 
Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court. EACH PARTY HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE 
EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT, WAIVES ANY OBJECTION TO VENUE, AND 
WAIVES ANY CLAIM THAT SUCH FORUM IS AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.

i. Compliance with Law.  Recipient shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, 
regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Agreement or to the 
implementation of the Project, as applicable to Recipient. Without limiting the generality 
of the foregoing, Recipient expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of Civil Rights 
Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and 
administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (v) all other 
applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules 
and regulations.

j. Dispute Resolution.  The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute 
arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly 
selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short 
of litigation.

k. Independent Contractor.  Recipient shall perform the Project as an independent 
contractor and not as an agent or employee of State.  Recipient has no right or authority 
to incur or create any obligation for or legally bind State in any way.  State cannot and 
will not control the means or manner by which Recipient performs the Project, except 
as specifically set forth in this Agreement.  Recipient is responsible for determining the 
appropriate means and manner of performing the Project.  Recipient acknowledges and 
agrees that Recipient is not an "officer", "employee", or "agent" of State, as those terms 
are used in ORS 30.265, and shall not make representations to third parties to the 
contrary.  

l. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining 
terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958
 

Page 8 of  16

shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular term 
or provision held to be invalid.

m. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts (by 
facsimile or otherwise), each of which is an original and all of which together are deemed 
one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories 
to the same counterpart.

n. Integration and Waiver.  This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the 
entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof.  There are no 
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein 
regarding this Agreement.  The delay or failure of either Party to enforce any provision of 
this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that Party of that or any other provision.  
Recipient, by the signature below of its authorized representative, hereby acknowledges 
that it has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms 
and conditions.

o. Survival. The following provisions survive termination of this Agreement: Sections 6.c., 
8 and 11.

 
 



Page 9 of  16

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958
 
The Parties, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that each Party has read this 
Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.
 

The Oregon Transportation Commission on October 20, 2010, approved Delegation Order Number 
OTC-01, which authorizes the Director of the Oregon Department of Transportation to administer 
programs related to public transit.

On March 1, 2012, the Director approved Delegation Order Number DIR-04, which delegates the 
authority to approve this Agreement to the Public Transportation Division Administrator.

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW



Page 10 of  16

Morrow County/State of Oregon 
Agreement No. 34958

Morrow County, by and through its 
__________________________________

By________________________________
(Legally designated representative)

Name_____________________________
(printed)

Date______________________________

By________________________________

Name_____________________________
(printed)

Date______________________________

By________________________________

Name_____________________________
(printed)

Date______________________________

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(If required in local process)

By________________________________

Recipient's Legal Counsel

Date______________________________

Recipient Contact:
Katie Imes
PO Box 495
Heppner, OR 97836
1 (541) 676-5667
kimes@co.morrow.or.us

State Contact:
Arla Miller
555 13th Street NE
Salem, OR 97301-4179
1 (503) 949-5415
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

State of Oregon, by and through its 
Department of Transportation

By________________________________
Karyn Criswell
Public Transportation Division Administrator

Date______________________________

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By Arla Miller

Date 06/11/2021

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $150,000)

N/A

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958

Page 11 of  16

EXHIBIT A

Project Description and Budget

Project Description/Statement of Work  

Project Title: STF Morrow County 34958
Operating

Item #1: Operating
Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)

$135,400.00 $135,400.00 $0.00
Sub Total $135,400.00 $135,400.00 $0.00
Grand Total $135,400.00 $135,400.00 $0.00

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This Agreement provides financial support for special transportation services benefitting seniors and 
individuals with disabilities.

2. PROJECT DELIVERABLES

Funding may be used for project types that benefit transportation for seniors and people experiencing 
disabilities including, but not limited to: maintenance and expansion of existing transportation 
programs; creation of new programs and services; planning and development for improved access 
to transportation; capital purchases; and as matching funds for state and federal programs also 
providing transportation and services to seniors and individuals with disabilities.

Recipient may distribute Special Transportation Fund (STF) funds to eligible subrecipients and 
projects. Additional projects or subrecipients require an amended application approved by State. 

Recipient shall include any equipment purchase valued at $50,000 or more, any transit vehicle 
acquired, and any transit facility constructed subject to this Agreement in Recipient's Agency Periodic 
Report and Transit Asset Management reporting to State.

3. PROJECT ACCOUNTING

Recipient retains authority over costs and allocations of STF dollars within the guidelines established 
by Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 391.800 through 391.830 and Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) 
Chapter 732. 

Recipient will receive and disburse STF funds from a separate governmental account. Any interest 
accrued from the account must be added to the funds and reported to State. 

Generally accepted accounting principles and Recipient's accounting system determine those costs 
that are to be accounted for as gross operating expenses. Recipient may not count the same costs 
twice if they have multiple agreements for which these costs may be eligible. Matching grant funds 
do not constitute claiming the same cost twice. The service provider may use capital equipment 
funded under USDOT- or State-source agreements when performing services rendered through a 
contract or sub-agreement funded by this Agreement. Depreciation of capital equipment funded 
from USDOT- or State-source grants is not an eligible expense. 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958

Page 12 of  16

EXHIBIT B

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 
 

This Agreement is financed by the funding source indicated below:
 

State Program State Funding Agency  Total State Funding
STF:  ORS 391.800
through ORS 391.830
and OAR Chapter 732,
Divisions 5, 10, and 30

And/Or 

STIF:  ORS 184.758
through ORS 184.766
and OAR Chapter 732,
Divisions 040, 042, and
044.

Oregon Department of
Transportation
355 Capitol St. N.E.
Salem, OR  97301-3871

$135,400.00

 
Administered By  
Public Transportation Division
555 13th Street NE
Salem, OR  97301-4179

 



Page 13 of  16

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958

 
EXHIBIT C

 

Insurance Requirements
 

Subagreement Insurance Requirements

GENERAL. 

Recipient shall require in its first tier subagreements with entities that are not units of local 
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES 
AND AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, 
NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance 
under the subagreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout 
the duration of the subagreement.  The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or 
entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State 
of Oregon and that are acceptable to State.  Recipient shall not authorize work to begin under 
subagreements until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, Recipient shall monitor continued 
compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent basis. Recipient shall 
incorporate appropriate provisions in the subagreement permitting it to enforce compliance with 
the insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance.  In 
no event shall Recipient permit work under a subagreement when Recipient is aware that the 
contractor is not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, "first tier" 
means a subagreement in which the Recipient is a Party.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

WORKERS COMPENSATION. 
All employers, including Contractor, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, 
shall comply with ORS 656.017 and shall provide Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage 
for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2).  
The coverage shall include Employer's Liability Insurance with limits not less than $500,000 each 
accident. Contractor shall require compliance with these requirements in each of its 
subcontractor contracts.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. 
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be issued on an occurrence basis covering bodily 
injury and property damage and shall include personal and advertising injury liability, products 
and completed operations, and contractual liability coverage. When work to be performed includes 
operations or activity within 50 feet of any railroad property, bridge, trestle, track, roadbed, tunnel, 
underpass or crossing, the Contractor shall provide the Contractual Liability - Railroads CG 24 
17 endorsement, or equivalent, on the Commercial General Liability policy. Amounts below are a 
minimum requirement as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000.

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY. 
Automobile Liability Insurance covering Contractor's business-related automobile use covering all 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles for bodily injury and property. Amount below is a minimum 
requirement as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000.

This coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance (with 
separate limits for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability).

EXCESS/UMBRELLA LIABILITY.
A combination of primary and Excess/Umbrella Liability Insurance may be used to meet the required 



Page 14 of  16

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958

 
limits of insurance.

ADDITIONAL INSURED.  
The liability insurance coverages, except Professional Liability or Workers' Compensation/
Employer's Liability, if included, must include the "State of Oregon, the Oregon Transportation 
Commission and the Department of Transportation, and their respective officers, 
members, agents and employees" as an endorsed Additional Insured but only with respect 
to the contractor's activities to be performed under the Subagreement. Coverage shall be primary 
and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

Additional Insured Endorsements on the Commercial General Liability shall be written on ISO Form 
CG 20 10 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations and ISO 
Form CG 20 37 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of completed operations. 
Additional Insured Endorsements shall be submitted with the Certificate(s) of Insurance and must 
be acceptable to the Recipient.

"TAIL" COVERAGE.  
If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as professional liability 
insurance or pollution liability insurance,  the contractor shall maintain either "tail" coverage 
or continuous "claims made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous 
"claims made" coverage is on or before the effective date of the Subagreement, for a minimum 
of twenty-four (24) months following the later of : (i) the contractor's completion and Recipient's 
acceptance of all Services required under the Subagreement or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty 
periods provided under the Subagreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing twenty-four (24) month 
requirement, if the contractor elects to maintain "tail" coverage and if the maximum time period 
"tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the twenty-four (24) month 
period described above, then the contractor may request and State may grant approval of  the 
maximum "tail " coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace.  If State approval is 
granted, the contractor shall maintain "tail" coverage for the maximum time period that "tail" 
coverage is reasonably available in the marketplace. 

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE.
The contractor or its insurer must provide thirty (30) days' written notice to Recipient before 
cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of 
the required insurance coverage(s). Recipient shall immediately notify State of any change 
in insurance coverage.

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE.
Recipient shall obtain from the contractor a certificate(s) of insurance for all required insurance 
before the contractor performs under the Subcontract. The certificate(s) or an attached 
endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are endorsed on the policy as 
Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a "claims made" basis, the extended reporting period 
applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims made" coverage.

Recipient Insurance Requirements

GENERAL.

Recipient shall: i) obtain at the Recipient's expense the insurance specified under TYPES AND 
AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE 
OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance under 
this Agreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force and at its own expense 
throughout the duration of this Agreement. Recipient shall obtain the following insurance from 
insurance companies or entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue 
coverage in the State of Oregon and that are acceptable to State. Coverage shall be primary and 
non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance with the exception of Professional 
Liability and Workers' Compensation. Recipient shall pay for all deductibles, self-insurance retention 
and self-insurance, if any.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENT REVIEW.



Page 15 of  16

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958

 
Recipient agrees to periodic review of insurance requirements by State under this Agreement and 
to provide updated requirements as mutually agreed upon by Recipient and State.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

WORKERS COMPENSATION. 
All employers, including Recipient, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, shall 
comply with ORS 656.017 and shall provide Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage for 
those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2). The 
coverage shall include Employers liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 
must be included. 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. 
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be issued on an occurrence basis covering bodily 
injury, death, and property damage and shall include personal and advertising injury liability, 
products and completed operations and contractual liability coverage.  When work to be performed 
includes operations or activity within 50 feet of any railroad property, bridge, trestle, track, 
roadbed, tunnel, underpass or crossing, the Contractor shall provide the Contractual Liability 
- Railroads CG 24 17 endorsement, or equivalent, on the Commercial General Liability policy. 
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall not be less than the following amounts as determined 
by State:

Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000.

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY. 
Automobile Liability Insurance covering business-related automobile use on all owned, non-owned 
or hired vehicles for bodily injury and property. Automobile Liability Insurance shall not be less 
than the following amount as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000. 

This coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance (with 
separate limits for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability).

EXCESS/UMBRELLA LIABILITY.
A combination of primary and Excess/Umbrella Liability Insurance may be used to meet the required 
limits of insurance.

ADDITIONAL INSURED. 
The liability insurance coverages, except Professional Liability or Workers' Compensation/
Employer's Liability, if included, must include the "State of Oregon, the Oregon Transportation 
Commission and the Department of Transportation, and their respective officers, 
members, agents and employees"  as an endorsed Additional Insured but only with respect 
to the Recipient's activities to be performed under this Agreement. Coverage shall be primary and 
non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

Additional Insured Endorsements on the Commercial General Liability shall be written on ISO Form 
CG 20 10 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations and ISO 
Form CG 20 37 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of completed operations. 
Additional Insured Endorsements shall be submitted with the Certificate(s) of Insurance and must 
be acceptable to the Recipient.

"TAIL" COVERAGE. 
If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as professional liability 
insurance, Recipient shall maintain either "tail" coverage or continuous "claims made" liability 
coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous "claims made" coverage is on or before 
the effective date of this Agreement, for a minimum of 24 months following the later of: (i) 
Recipient's completion and State's acceptance of all Services required under this Agreement or, 
(ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing 24-month requirement, if Recipient elects to maintain "tail" coverage and if the maximum 



Page 16 of  16

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34958

 
time period "tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the 24-month period 
described above, then Recipient may request and State may grant approval of the maximum "tail" 
coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace. If State approval is granted, Recipient 
shall maintain "tail" coverage for the maximum time period that "tail" coverage is reasonably 
available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. 
Recipient or its insurer must provide 30 days' written notice to State before cancellation of, material 
change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance 
coverage(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. 
State shall obtain from Recipient a certificate(s) of insurance for all required insurance before the 
effective date of this Agreement . The certificate(s) or an attached endorsement must specify: i) all 
entities and individuals who are endorsed on the policy as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance 
on a "claims made" basis, the extended reporting period applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims 
made" coverage.

STATE ACCEPTANCE.
All insurance providers are subject to State acceptance.  If requested by State, Recipient shall 
provide complete copies of insurance policies, endorsements, self-insurance documents and related 
insurance documents to State's representatives responsible for verification of the insurance 
coverages required under this Exhibit C.



 

Kayak Public Transit Purchase Service Agreement                                                                                Page 1 of 4 
 

Kayak Public Transit Purchase Service Agreement 
 
 
Section I Parties 
 
This agreement is made by and between Morrow County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, 
hereafter referred to as “County”, and Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation (CTUIR), 
hereafter referred to as “Provider”. 
 
Section II Considerations 
 
It is hereby agreed by and between the above named parties that as consideration for performance by 
Provider of services in accordance with the terms and conditions specified below, that County will pay to 
the Provider the sum of $12,000.00 per year.  Funds for this grant will come from the 5310 Grant 
awarded to the County by the Federal Government for the 2021-2023 biennium.  Portions of said sum 
may be paid to Provider on a quarterly basis as state funds are received, and is subject to full repayment 
to County by Provider for failure of Provider to adhere to the terms and conditions of this agreement. 
 
Section III Term 
 
This agreement shall be effective from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023. 
 
Section IV Terms and Conditions 
 
The following terms and condition are binding on the parties of this agreement: 
 

1. Use of Funds 
 

Provider shall limit the use of funds paid under this agreement to the sole benefit of elderly and 
handicapped residents of Morrow County.  Travel will be provided within Morrow County 
except when there are required services to be provided that are not available within Morrow 
County.  County shall, on demand, have access to all records of Provider, including financial 
documents or records, for review at any reasonable time. 
 

2. Services 
 

Provider shall perform all service specified and approved by County as directed by County. 
 

3. Certification 
 

During the term of this agreement, Provider shall obtain and maintain current status for any and 
certification necessary for the performance of the services required herein. 
 

4. Independent Contractor 
 

Provider is an independent contractor and shall not be considered an employee, agency, 
partner, or representative of County for any purpose whatsoever.  Provider shall not be entitled 
to payment by County for employee benefits, workers compensation, employment withholding 



 

Kayak Public Transit Purchase Service Agreement                                                                                Page 2 of 4 
 

taxes, or unemployment insurance.  Contractor shall have the sole control and supervision over 
the manner in which services are performed, except that they must be performed in a manner 
which is consistent with the terms of this agreement.  Provider shall be responsible for 
furnishing all equipment necessary for the performance of the services required herein. 
 

5. Labor Standards 
 

Provider agrees to comply with all applicable labor standards and restriction set forth in ORS 
279.310 through 279.320. 
 

6. Waiver 
 

A waiver of any term or condition under this agreement by either party shall not be construed 
as a continuing waiver of that term or condition or affect the right to future enforcement of that 
term or condition. 
 

7. Reports and invoices 
 

Provider will furnish to County written reports and invoices for payment on a quarterly basis.  
For quarter beginning July 1 through September 30 report and invoice due October 15.  Quarter 
October 1 through December 31 report and invoice due January 15.  Quarter January 1 through 
March 31 report and invoice due April 15 and quarter April 1 through June 30 report and invoice 
due July 15.  Invoices from the Provider for payment of the quarter will be for $3,000.00. 
 

8. Liability of Insurance 
 

Provider shall obtain and maintain during the term of this agreement general liability insurance 
to cover any acts or omissions of Provider in the performance of this agreement.  Such insurance 
shall not be less than the maximum amount specified under the Oregon Tort Claims Act (ORS 
30.270). 
 

9. Indemnification 
 

Provider shall indemnify and hold County, The Loop Morrow County Transportation Advisory 
Committee and all of its agents, officers, and employees harmless from any damages which may 
arise from the acts or omissions of Provider in performing this contract, and for the costs of any 
suit or proceedings arising hereunder including attorney fees. 
 

10. Dispute Resolution 
 

If a dispute should arise concerning this agreement, the parties agree to make a good faith 
effort to mediate the dispute before filing any action or suit, with costs of mediation to be 
shared equally by the parties.  If a suit or action is filed, each party will pay its own costs and 
attorney fees.  Venue for such action shall be filed in Morrow County, Oregon. 
 
 
 
 



 

Kayak Public Transit Purchase Service Agreement                                                                                Page 3 of 4 
 

11. Availability of funds 
 

This agreement is subject to the availability of County funds appropriated for this specific 
purpose, and to the provision of funds to the County from state or federal funding sources. 
 

12. Governing Law 
 

The provisions of this agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Oregon.  Provider 
agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local laws in the performance of this agreement. 
 
See Appendix A for federal governing requirements. 
 

13. Assignment 
 

Provider may not assign the rights or duties under this agreement to any other person or party 
without express written consent of County. 
 

14. Successors in Interest 
 
The provisions of this agreement shall be binding on any heirs, assigns, or successors in interest 
to Providers. 
 

15. Modification 
 

Any amendment of modification to any provision of this agreement must be in writing, dated, 
and signed by both parties. 
 

16. Entire Agreement 
 

This document represents the entire agreement between the parties, and no other 
representation, either oral or written shall be effective unless adopted in accordance with the 
terms of this agreement. 
 

17. Termination 
 

Either party shall have the right to terminate this contract with or without cause upon 60 days 
notice in writing to the other party.  If Provider terminates the agreement, Provider shall be 
required to repay to County the amount of any funds advanced to Provider which Provider has 
not earned or expended through the provision of services in accordance with the provision of 
this agreement.  County reserves the right to terminate this agreement immediately upon notice 
to Provider for any breach of this agreement, including but not limited to any action which in the 
opinion of the County would endanger the public health, safety or welfare, or endanger or 
jeopardize County obligations, financial or otherwise, to third parties as a result of Provider’s 
breach of this agreement. 
 

 
 
 



 

Kayak Public Transit Purchase Service Agreement                                                                                Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
Dated this ____________________day of ____________________2021. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
_______________________________________   ________________________________ 
Paul Rabb       Don Russell, Chair 
Interim Executive Director     Morrow Co. Commissioner 
Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla  
Indian Reservation (CTUIR) 
 

 
______________________________ 
Jim Doherty 
Morrow Co. Commissioner 

 
 
 
        
      
 

________________________________ 
Melissa Lindsay 
Morrow Co. Commissioner 

 
 
 

 
   APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFIENCIENCY 
        
 
 
 
        By ______________________________ 
        Justin Nelson 
        Morrow Co Counsel 
 
 
 
        Date: ___________________________ 











Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 35185

Operating   5310

 

Page 1 of  21

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the State of Oregon, acting by and 
through its Department of Transportation, Public Transportation Division, hereinafter referred to as 
"State," and Morrow County, hereinafter referred to as "Recipient," and collectively referred to 
as the "Parties."
 

 

AGREEMENT
1. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2021 or the 

date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law.  Unless 
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for 
Project Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2023 (the "Expiration Date").  No Grant Funds 
are available for any expenditures after the Expiration Date.  State's obligation to disburse 
Grant Funds under this Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

2. Agreement Documents.  This Agreement consists of this document and the following 
documents, all of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit A:  Project Description and Budget

Exhibit B:  Financial Information

Exhibit C:  Subagreement Insurance Requirements and Recipient Insurance 
Requirements

Exhibit D: Summary of Federal Requirements, incorporating by reference Annual 
List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Grants 
and Cooperative Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal Transit 
Administration Master Agreement

Exhibit E: Information required by 2 CFR 200.331(a), may be accessed at 
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/RPTD/Pages/index.aspx, Oregon Public Transit 
Information System (OPTIS), as the information becomes available

In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement, 
the language in the document with the highest precedence shall control.  The precedence of 
each of the documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence 
to lowest precedence:  Exhibit D; Exhibit E; this Agreement without Exhibits; Exhibit A; Exhibit 
B; Exhibit C.

3. Project Cost; Grant Funds; Match.  The total project cost is estimated at $136,011.00.  In 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, State shall provide Recipient an 
amount not to exceed $122,043.00 (the "Grant Funds") for eligible costs described in Section 
6.a. hereof.  Recipient shall provide matching funds for all Project Costs as described in Exhibit 
A. Recipient will be responsible for all Project Costs not covered by the Grant Funds.  

4. Project.  The Grant Funds shall be used solely for the project described in Exhibit A (the 
"Project") and shall not be used for any other purpose. No Grant Funds will be disbursed for any 
changes to the Project unless such changes are approved by State by amendment pursuant 
to Section 11.a hereof.

5. Progress Reports.  Recipient shall submit quarterly progress reports to State no later than 
45 days after the close of each quarterly reporting period.  Reporting periods are July through 
September, October through December, January through March, and April through June. 
Reports must be in a format acceptable to State and must be entered into the Oregon Public 
Transit Information System (OPTIS), which may be accessed at https://www.oregon.gov/
odot/RPTD/Pages/index.aspx.  If Recipient is unable to access OPTIS, reports must be sent 
to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us.  Reports shall include a statement of revenues and 
expenditures for each quarter, including documentation of local match contributions and 
expenditures. State reserves the right to request such additional information as may be 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185
 

Page 2 of  21

necessary to comply with federal or state reporting requirements. 
6. Disbursement and Recovery of Grant Funds.

a. Disbursement Generally.  State shall reimburse eligible costs incurred in carrying out 
the Project, up to the Grant Funds amount provided in Section 3. Reimbursements shall 
be made by State within 30 days of State's approval of a request for reimbursement from 
Recipient using a format that is acceptable to State. Requests for reimbursement must 
be entered into OPTIS or sent to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us. Eligible costs are 
the reasonable and necessary costs incurred by Recipient, or under a subagreement 
described in Section 9 of this Agreement, in performance of the Project and that are not 
excluded from reimbursement by State, either by this Agreement or by exclusion as a 
result of financial review or audit.

b. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds 
to Recipient is subject to satisfaction, with respect to each disbursement, of each of the 
following conditions precedent:

i. State has received funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable 
administrative discretion, to make the disbursement.

ii. Recipient is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement including, without 
limitation, Exhibit D and the requirements incorporated by reference in Exhibit D.

iii. Recipient's representations and warranties set forth in Section 7 hereof are true 
and correct on the date of disbursement with the same effect as though made on 
the date of disbursement.

iv. Recipient has provided to State a request for reimbursement using a format that is 
acceptable to and approved by State.  Recipient must submit its final request for 
reimbursement following completion of the Project and no later than 60 days after 
the Expiration Date. Failure to submit the final request for reimbursement within 
60 days after the Expiration Date could result in non-payment.

c. Recovery of Grant Funds.
i. Recovery of Misexpended Funds or Nonexpended Funds. Any Grant Funds disbursed 

to Recipient under this Agreement that are either (i) disbursed but unexpended 
as of the Expiration Date ("Unexpended Funds") or (ii) expended in violation or 
contravention of one or more of the provisions of  this Agreement ("Misexpended 
Funds") must be returned to State. Recipient shall return all Misexpended Funds 
to State no later than 15 days after State's written demand. Recipient shall return 
all Unexpended Funds to State within 15 days after the earlier of expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.

ii. Recovery of Funds upon Termination. If this Agreement is terminated under either 
Section 10(a)(i) or Section 10(a)(v) below, Recipient shall return to State all funds 
disbursed to Recipient within 15 days after State's written demand for the same.

7. Representations and Warranties of Recipient.  Recipient represents and warrants to State 
as follows:

a. Organization and Authority. Recipient is duly organized and validly existing under the 
laws of the State of Oregon and is eligible to receive the Grant Funds. Recipient has full 
power, authority, and legal right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its 
obligations hereunder, and the making and performance by Recipient of this Agreement 
(1) have been duly authorized by all necessary action of Recipient and (2) do not and 
will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any 
court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision 
of Recipient's Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, if applicable, (3) do not and will not 
result in the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other 
agreement or instrument to which Recipient is a party or by which Recipient or any of 
its properties may be bound or affected. No authorization, consent, license, approval 
of, filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or 
supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by Recipient 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185
 

Page 3 of  21

of this Agreement.
b. Binding Obligation.  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by 

Recipient and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Recipient, enforceable in 
accordance with its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar 
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally.

c. No Solicitation.  Recipient's officers, employees, and agents shall neither solicit nor 
accept gratuities, favors, or any item of monetary value from contractors, potential 
contractors, or parties to subagreements, except as permitted by applicable law. No 
member or delegate to the Congress of the United States or State of Oregon employee 
shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or any benefit arising therefrom.

d. No Debarment.  Neither Recipient nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, or 
voluntarily excluded from this federally-assisted transaction, or proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participating in this Agreement by any 
state or federal agency. Recipient agrees to notify State immediately if it is debarred, 
suspended or otherwise excluded from this federally-assisted transaction for any reason 
or if circumstances change that may affect this status, including without limitation upon 
any relevant indictments or convictions of crimes. 

 

The warranties set in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other warranties 
set forth in this Agreement or implied by law.

8. Records Maintenance and Access; Audit.
a. Records, Access to Records and Facilities. Recipient shall make and retain proper 

and complete books of record and account and maintain all fiscal records related to 
this Agreement and the Project in accordance with all applicable generally accepted 
accounting principles, generally accepted governmental auditing standards and state 
minimum standards for audits of municipal corporations. Recipient shall require that 
each of its subrecipients and subcontractors complies with these requirements. State, 
the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon (Secretary), the United States Department 
of Transportation (USDOT), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and their duly 
authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, papers and 
records of Recipient that are directly related to this Agreement, the funds provided 
hereunder, or the Project for the purpose of making audits and examinations. In addition, 
State, the Secretary, USDOT, FTA and their duly authorized representatives may make 
and retain excerpts, copies, and transcriptions of the foregoing books, documents, 
papers, and records. Recipient shall permit authorized representatives of State, the 
Secretary, USDOT and FTA to perform site reviews of the Project, and to inspect all 
vehicles, real property, facilities and equipment purchased by Recipient as part of the 
Project, and any transportation services rendered by Recipient.

b. Retention of Records. Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, 
papers, and records that are directly related to this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, records relating to capital assets funded by this Agreement, the Grant Funds 
or the Project for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer period as may be required 
by other provisions of this Agreement or applicable law, following the Expiration Date. 
If there are unresolved audit questions at the end of the six-year period, Recipient shall 
retain the records until the questions are resolved. 

c. Expenditure Records.  Recipient shall document the expenditure of all Grant Funds 
disbursed by State under this Agreement.  Recipient shall create and maintain all 
expenditure records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in 
sufficient detail to permit State to verify how the Grant Funds were expended.

d. Audit Requirements.
i. Recipients receiving federal funds in excess of $750,000 are subject to audit 

conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F. Recipient, 
if subject to this requirement, shall at Recipient's own expense submit to State, 
Public Transportation Division, 555 13th Street NE, Suite 3, Salem, Oregon, 
97301-4179 or to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us, a copy of, or electronic 
link to, its annual audit subject to this requirement covering the funds expended 
under this Agreement and shall submit or cause to be submitted, the annual audit 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185
 

Page 4 of  21

of any subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s) of Recipient responsible 
for the financial management of funds received under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall indemnify, save, protect and hold harmless State from the cost of 
any audits or special investigations performed by the Secretary with respect to the 
funds expended under this Agreement. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that 
any audit costs incurred by Recipient as a result of allegations of fraud, waste or 
abuse are ineligible for reimbursement under this or any other agreement between 
Recipient and State.

 This Section 8 shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement.
9. Recipient Subagreements and Procurements

a. Subagreements.  Recipient may enter into agreements with sub-recipients, contractors 
or subcontractors (collectively, "subagreements") for performance of the Project.

i. All subagreements must be in writing executed by Recipient and must incorporate 
and pass through all of the applicable requirements of this Agreement to the other 
party or parties to the subagreement(s). Use of a subagreement does not relieve 
Recipient of its responsibilities under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall require all of its contractors performing work under this Agreement 
to name State as a third-party beneficiary of Recipient's subagreement with the 
contractor and to name State as an additional or "dual" obligee on contractors' 
payment and performance bonds.

iii. Recipient shall provide State with a copy of any signed subagreement, as well as 
any other purchasing or contracting documentation, upon request by State. This 
paragraph 9.a.iii. shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

iv. Recipient must report to State any material breach of a term or condition of a 
subagreement within ten (10) days of Recipient discovering the breach.

b. Recipient shall review the Best Practices Procurement Manual, a technical assistance 
manual prepared by the FTA, available on the FTA website: www.fta.dot.gov/
grants/13054_6037.html

c. Subagreement indemnity; insurance

i. Recipient's subagreement(s) shall require the other party to such 
subagreements(s) that is not a unit of local government as defined in ORS 
190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless State and 
its officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims, 
actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys' 
fees, arising from a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260, 
caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or 
willful acts or omissions of  the other party to Recipient's subagreement 
or any of such party's officers, agents, employees or subcontractors 
("Claims"). It is the specific intention of the Parties that the State shall, 
in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or 
willful acts or omissions of the State, be indemnified by the other party to 
Recipient's subagreement(s) from and against any and all Claims.

ii. Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Recipient's 
subrecipient(s), contractor(s) nor subcontractor(s) (collectively 
"Subrecipients"), nor any attorney engaged by Recipient's 
Subrecipient(s), shall defend any claim in the name of the State or any 
agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal representative 
of the State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior written 
consent of the Oregon Attorney General. The State may, at any time at 
its election, assume its own defense and settlement in the event that 
it determines that Recipient's Subrecipient is prohibited from defending 
State or that Recipient's Subrecipient is not adequately defending State's 
interests, or that an important governmental principle is at issue or that 
it is in the best interests of State to do so. State reserves all rights to 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185
 

Page 5 of  21

pursue claims it may have against Recipient's Subrecipient if State elects 
to assume its own defense.

iii. Recipient shall require the other party, or parties, to each of its subagreements that 
are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003 to obtain and maintain 
insurance requirements provided in Exhibit C to this Agreement. Recipient may 
specify insurance requirements of its contractor(s) above the minimum insurance 
requirements specified in Exhibit C. Recipient shall verify its contractor(s) meet the 
insurance requirements in Exhibit C.

d. Procurements. Recipient shall make purchases of any equipment, materials, or services 
for the Project under procedures that comply with Oregon law, as applicable, including 
all applicable provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code and rules, and in 
conformance to FTA Circular 4220.1F, Third Party Contracting Requirements including:

i. All applicable clauses required by federal statute, executive orders and their 
implementing regulations are included in each competitive procurement;

ii. All procurement transactions are conducted in a manner providing full and open 
competition;

iii. Procurements exclude the use of statutorily or administratively imposed in-state 
or geographic preference in the evaluation of bids or proposals (with exception of 
locally controlled licensing requirements);

iv. Construction, architectural and engineering procurements are based on Brooks Act 
procedures unless the procurement is subject to ORS 279C.100 to 279C.125. 

e. Conflict of Interest. Recipient's public officials shall comply with Oregon's government 
ethics laws, ORS 244.010 et seq., as those laws may be subsequently amended.

10. Termination
a. Termination by State.  State may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of 

written notice of termination to Recipient, or at such later date as may be established 
by State in such written notice, if:

i. Recipient fails to perform the Project within the time specified herein or any 
extension thereof or commencement, continuation or timely completion of the 
Project by Recipient is, for any reason, rendered improbable, impossible, or illegal; 
or

ii. State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure 
authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement; or

iii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in 
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding 
under this Agreement; or

iv. The Project would not produce results commensurate with the further expenditure 
of funds; or

v. Recipient takes any action pertaining to this Agreement without the approval of 
State and which under the provisions of this Agreement would have required the 
approval of State.

b. Termination by Recipient.  Recipient may terminate this Agreement effective upon 
delivery of written notice of termination to State, or at such later date as may be 
established by Recipient in such written notice, if:

i. The requisite local funding to continue the Project becomes unavailable to 
Recipient; or

ii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in 
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding 
under this Agreement.

c. Termination by Either Party.  Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon at 
least ten days' notice to the other Party and failure of the other Party to cure within the 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185
 

Page 6 of  21

period provided in the notice, if the other Party fails to comply with any of the terms 
of this Agreement.

11. General Provisions
a. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended or extended only by a written 

instrument signed by both Parties and approved as required by applicable law.
b. Contribution.

i. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging 
a tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against State 
or Recipient with respect to which the other Party may have liability, the notified 
Party must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and 
deliver to the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with 
respect to the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense 
of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own 
choosing. Receipt by a Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and 
meaningful opportunity for the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and 
settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions 
precedent to that Party's liability with respect to the Third Party Claim.

ii. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 11.c below, with respect to a Third Party 
Claim for which State is jointly liable with Recipient (or would be if joined in the 
Third Party Claim ), State shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including 
attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion as is 
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the State on the one hand and of 
the Recipient on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in 
such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other 
relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of State on the one hand 
and of Recipient on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among 
other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and 
opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, 
judgments, fines or settlement amounts. State's contribution amount in any 
instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon 
law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole 
liability in the proceeding.

iii. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 11.c below, with respect to a Third 
Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with State (or would be if joined 
in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the amount of expenses 
(including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement 
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State in such proportion 
as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and 
of State on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant 
equitable considerations. The relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of 
State on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, 
the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to 
correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines 
or settlement amounts. Recipient's contribution amount in any instance is capped to 
the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon 
Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability in the proceeding.

c. Indemnification.
i. Subject to any limitations imposed by State law and the Oregon Constitution, 

Recipient agrees to the following contract-related indemnification for all projects 
authorized under this Agreement:

ii. Where Recipient contracts for services or performs project management for a 
project, Recipient shall accept all responsibility, defend lawsuits, indemnify, and 
hold State harmless, for all contract-related claims and suits. This includes but is 
not limited to all contract claims or suits brought by any contractor, whether arising 
out of the contractor's work, Recipient's supervision of any individual project or 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185
 

Page 7 of  21

contract, or Recipient's failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement.
 

Sections 11.b and 11.c shall survive termination of this Agreement.
d. Insurance. Recipient shall meet the insurance requirements within Exhibit C. 
e. Dispute Resolution.  The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute 

arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly 
selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short 
of litigation.

f. Responsibility for Grant Funds.  Any recipient of Grant Funds, pursuant to this 
Agreement with State, shall assume sole liability for that recipient's breach of the 
conditions of this Agreement, and shall, upon recipient's breach of conditions that 
requires State to return funds to the FTA, hold harmless and indemnify State for an 
amount equal to the funds received under this Agreement; or if legal limitations apply 
to the indemnification ability of the recipient of Grant Funds, the indemnification amount 
shall be the maximum amount of funds available for expenditure, including any available 
contingency funds or other available non-appropriated funds, up to the amount received 
under this Agreement.

g. Duplicate Payment.  Recipient is not entitled to compensation or any other form of 
duplicate, overlapping or multiple payments for the same work performed under this 
Agreement from any agency of the State of Oregon or the United States of America or 
any other party, organization or individual.

h. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  State and Recipient are the only Parties to this 
Agreement and are the only Parties entitled to enforce its terms.  Nothing in this 
Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit 
or right, whether directly or indirectly, to a third person unless such a third person is 
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as an intended beneficiary 
of the terms of this Agreement.

Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the Federal Government, absent express written 
consent by the Federal Government, is not a party to this Agreement and shall not be 
subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Recipient, contractor or any other party 
(whether or not a party to the Agreement) pertaining to any matter resulting from the 
this Agreement.

i. Notices.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any 
communications between the Parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be 
given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, email, or mailing the same, postage 
prepaid, to Recipient Contact or State Contact at the address or number set forth 
on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other addresses or numbers as 
either Party may hereafter indicate pursuant to this subsection. Any communication 
or notice personally delivered shall be deemed to be given when actually delivered. 
Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed to be given when 
receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine, and to be effective 
against State, such facsimile transmission must be confirmed by telephone notice to 
State Contact. Any communication by email shall be deemed to be given when the 
recipient of the email acknowledges receipt of the email. Any communication or notice 
mailed shall be deemed to be given when received.  

j. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles 
of conflicts of law.  Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between 
State (or any other agency or department of the State of Oregon) and Recipient that 
arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and 
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County in the State of Oregon.  In no event 
shall this section be construed as a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense 
or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on 
the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any 
Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court.  EACH PARTY HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE 
EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT, WAIVES ANY OBJECTION TO VENUE, AND 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185
 

Page 8 of  21

WAIVES ANY CLAIM THAT SUCH FORUM IS AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.
k. Compliance with Law.  Recipient shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, 

regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Agreement or to the 
implementation of the Project, as applicable to Recipient, including without limitation 
as described in Exhibit D.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Recipient 
expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and administrative rules established 
pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (v) all other applicable requirements of federal and 
state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.

l. Independent Contractor.  Recipient shall perform the Project as an independent 
contractor and not as an agent or employee of State.  Recipient has no right or authority 
to incur or create any obligation for or legally bind State in any way.  State cannot and 
will not control the means or manner by which Recipient performs the Project, except 
as specifically set forth in this Agreement.  Recipient is responsible for determining the 
appropriate means and manner of performing the Project.  Recipient acknowledges and 
agrees that Recipient is not an "officer", "employee", or "agent" of State, as those terms 
are used in ORS 30.265, and shall not make representations to third parties to the 
contrary.  

m. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining 
terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties 
shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular term 
or provision held to be invalid.

n. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts (by 
facsimile or otherwise), each of which is an original and all of which together are deemed 
one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories 
to the same counterpart.

o. Integration and Waiver.  This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the 
entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof.  There are no 
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein 
regarding this Agreement.  The delay or failure of either Party to enforce any provision of 
this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that Party of that or any other provision.  
Recipient, by the signature below of its authorized representative, hereby acknowledges 
that it has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms 
and conditions.

p. Survival. The following provisions survive termination of this Agreement: Sections 6.c., 
8 and 11.

 
 



Page 9 of  21

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185
 
The Parties, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that each Party has read this 
Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.
 

The Oregon Transportation Commission on October 20, 2010, approved Delegation Order Number 
OTC-01, which authorizes the Director of the Oregon Department of 
Transportation to administer programs related to public transit.

On March 1, 2012, the Director approved Delegation Order Number DIR-04, which 
delegates the authority to approve this Agreement to the Public Transportation 
Division Administrator.
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW



Page 10 of  21

Morrow County/State of Oregon 
Agreement No. 35185

Morrow County, by and through its

__________________________________

By________________________________
(Legally designated representative)

Name_____________________________
(printed)

Date______________________________

By________________________________

Name_____________________________
(printed)

Date______________________________

By________________________________

Name_____________________________
(printed)

Date______________________________

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(If required in local process)

By________________________________
Recipient's Legal Counsel

Date______________________________

Recipient Contact:
Katie Imes
PO Box 495
Heppner, OR 97836
1 (541) 676-5667
kimes@co.morrow.or.us

State Contact:
Arla Miller
555 13th Street NE
Salem, OR 97301-4179
1 (503) 949-5415
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation

By
Karyn Criswell
Public Transportation Division Administrator

Date

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By Arla Miller

Date 06/10/2021

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $150,000)

N/A

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185

 

Page 11 of  21

EXHIBIT A

Project Description and Budget
 
Project Description/Statement of Work  
 
Project Title: 5310 Morrow County 35185

Item #1: Mobility Management - 5302(a)(1)(L)
 

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$76,969.00 $69,064.00 $7,905.00 State Funds

Item #1: Preventive Maintenance
 

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$47,042.00 $42,211.00 $4,831.00 State Funds

Item #1: Contracted Service (5310 only)
 

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$12,000.00 $10,768.00 $1,232.00 State Funds

Sub Total $136,011.00 $122,043.00 $13,968.00
 

Grand Total $136,011.00 $122,043.00 $13,968.00
 

 
1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

A. Mobility Management

Mobility management is an approach for managing and delivering coordinated transportation
services to customers, including seniors, people with disabilities, and individuals with lower
incomes. 

Eligible mobility management activities include:
- Operating transportation brokerages to coordinate service providers, funding resources, and
customer needs; 
- Coordinating transportation services for seniors, individuals with disabilities, and individuals
with low incomes; 
- Supporting local partnerships that coordinate transportation services; 
- Staffing the development and implementation of coordination plans; 
- Providing travel training and trip planning activities for customers; 
- Developing and operating traveler call centers to coordinate travel information, manage
eligibility requirements, and arrange customer travel; and 
- Planning and implementing the acquisition of intelligent transportation technologies to operate
a coordinated system. 

Reimbursements for this task under Section 5310 shall not exceed $69,064.

B. Preventive Maintenance

This Agreement provides funding for preventive maintenance on vehicles and non-vehicle assets
in the provision of public transportation. Proper maintenance ensures assets are kept in good
condition per manufacturer's recommendations and that safety standards are met. 

Preventive maintenance reimbursed in this Agreement is for assets used in the provision of
public transportation services for the general public, seniors, or individuals with disabilities. This
Agreement does not provide for maintenance on staff vehicles, vehicles used for business of
Recipient, or maintenance vehicles.

Reimbursements for this task under Section 5310 shall not exceed $42,211.

C. Purchased Services

This Agreement provides funding to purchase service to provide public transportation to seniors
and individuals with disabilities, and the general public, in and around Morrow County, Oregon



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185

 

Page 12 of  21

and to support the administrative costs required to manage the service contract.

Reimbursements for this task under Section 5310 shall not exceed $10,767.

2. PROJECT DELIVERABLES, TASKS and PERFORMANCE MEASURES

A. Mobility Management

Mobility management projects include planning, training, and management activities for
improving coordination among public transportation service providers, including human service
agencies and private providers. These projects build coordination among existing public
transportation agencies and increase service options that would not otherwise be available for
seniors, people experiencing disabilities, and other riders of public transportation.

Recipient will provide call center services and travel orientation targeted to seniors and
individuals with disabilities residing in Morrow County, Oregon. Funds will support staff serving
as dispatch, travel trainer and mobility manager. The staff in these positions will provide travel
training and orientation targeted to seniors, individuals with disabilities, and the general public. 

Recipient will conduct travel training with a goal of removing barriers and allowing seniors to
age in place and maintain independence.  This task shall include one-on-one travel training
and at least one targeted community outreach campaign. The goals of this task are to improve
access to transportation by providing supportive education in a safe environment and to improve
coordination of transportation resources.

The following measure is established to evaluate the effectiveness of the project over the
Agreement period:  

Number of customer contacts served by Mobility Management Program: 9,000

Recipient will oversee and monitor the services and performance of any consultants or
contractors used in the project.  

B. Preventive Maintenance

Recipient will complete all preventive maintenance tasks prior to the expiration date of this
Agreement. 

Preventive maintenance expenses include activities, supplies, materials, labor, services, and
associated costs required to preserve or extend the functionality and serviceability of the asset
in a cost effective manner. Preventive maintenance includes, but is not limited to the following:
oil changes; engine tune-ups; tire purchases; tire maintenance; annual vehicle inspections;
scheduled or routine maintenance; and associated parts, supplies, and labor. 

Preventive maintenance under this Agreement does not include repairs resulting from motor
vehicle accidents covered by insurance, repairs on vehicles or components under warranty, or
repairs which are paid for in other agreements or contracts.

Recipient must provide to State, upon request, a plan for scheduled preventive maintenance.
Reimbursement requests must match the activities or purchases described in Recipient's plan. 

A major component replacement (such as an engine or transmission), that keeps an asset within
useful life (overhaul), or extends the useful life (rebuild) may be eligible for reimbursement
under this Agreement, pending verification of conformance to Recipient's adopted maintenance
plan and requirements detailed in Federal Transit Administration Circular 5010.1E (Award
Management Requirements), Chapter IV. 

Overhaul is performed as a planned or concentrated preventive maintenance activity and is
intended to enable the vehicle to perform to the end of the original useful life. A vehicle must
meet at least 40 percent of its useful life to be considered for an overhaul. Recipient must obtain
pre-approval from State prior to any vehicle overhaul. Vehicle rebuilds must extend the useful
life of the vehicle by at least four years. 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185

 

Page 13 of  21

If local circumstances change, for example, vehicle type or asset disposition, Recipient's
maintenance plan must be updated to reflect that change.

C. Purchased Services

The contracted service will be provided by a contractor selected by Recipient, and will be
designed to benefit seniors and individuals with disabilities, and may also be made available to
the general public. Recipient shall conduct procurements for purchased public transportation
services following federally required procurement processes and provide State with a copy upon
request.

The service, schedule, days, hours, and service type will be designed to meet the needs of
seniors and individuals with disabilities as determined by Recipient in consultation with the
operator of service, the affected community members, and stakeholders identified by Recipient. 

Services funded under Section 5310 "Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with
Disabilities Program" will be provided in accordance with the locally adopted Coordinated Public
Transit Human Services Transportation Plan (Coordinated Plan). Recipient and contractor will
coordinate the delivery of transportation services with other public and private transportation
providers to enhance regional services and to avoid duplication of services. Coordinated service
may be made available to a variety of potential users, including the general public. 

Recipient may amend the service design at any time in accordance with local demand, funding
issues, changes in the Coordinated Plan, or other situations that require service to be changed.
Recipient will inform State if there is a change in the service funded by this Agreement.  Service
changes should occur in adherence with federal guidance outlined in Title VI Circular 4702.1B. 

Recipient will market the services in an inclusive and culturally appropriate manner.

Recipient is encouraged to set realistic goals and establish measurable outcomes. Progress
meeting established goals and outcomes can be shared in Recipient's Agency Periodic Report
(APR).  

Recipient will oversee and monitor the services and performance of the contractor or pass-
through subrecipient.

The following performance measure will be used to evaluate the effectiveness of the project.  

A ridership goal is established for this project as follows. 

One-Way Rides for the biennium of fiscal years 2022 and 2023: 3,200
Unduplicated Riders for the biennium of fiscal years 2022 and 2023: 75

Ridership is defined as the actual or estimated one-way passenger trips provided to seniors and
individuals with disabilities. A passenger trip is a unit of service counted each time a passenger
enters a vehicle, is transported, then exits the vehicle. Each unique destination constitutes a
passenger trip. 

3. PROJECT ACCOUNTING, MATCHING FUNDING and SPENDING PLAN

This Agreement covers contracted public transportation provision, as defined under the 49 USC
Section 5310 program, as described in Circular 9070.1G, Section III-14-e. 

Generally accepted accounting principles and the Recipient's accounting system determine
those costs that are to be accounted for as gross operating expenses. Recipient may not
count the same costs twice if they have multiple agreements for which these costs may be
eligible. The service provider may use capital equipment funded under USDOT- or State-source
agreements when performing services rendered through a contract or subagreement funded by
this Agreement. Depreciation of capital equipment funded from USDOT- or State-source grants is
not an eligible expense. 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185

 

Page 14 of  21

Sources of funding that may be used as Recipient's matching funds for this Agreement include
local funds; Statewide Transportation Improvement Formula Funds; Special Transportation
Formula Funds; service contract revenue, advertisement and other earned income; cash
donations; and verifiable in-kind contributions integral to the project budget. In-kind
contributions claimed as matching funding must be reported to State. Recipient may not use
passenger fares as matching funding. 

Recipient will subtract revenue from fares, tickets and passes whether pre-paid or post-paid,
from the gross operating expense of the service. Administrative expenses incurred by the
contractor or pass-through subrecipient are reimbursable as operating expenses. State's
obligation to reimburse Project costs is contingent upon Recipient first paying or otherwise
contributing its minimum match amount set forth in this Exhibit A.    

Recipient may not use assets acquired under this Agreement to compete unfairly with the private
sector. 

Eligible mobility management expenses are administrative or planning costs to develop new
projects and do not include capital costs other than durable equipment, supplies, or the cost of
operating public transportation services. Incidental durable equipment is an eligible expense up
to $4,999 of the total project cost. 

4.  REPORTING AND INVOICING REQUIREMENTS 

Recipient will request reimbursement for covered expenses incurred during each period as
prescribed by State. Copies of invoices must be submitted for all vendor charges. In-house
charges must be documented showing time specifically associated with the project.

A. Mobility Management
Recipient will provide a quarterly narrative progress report and a fiscal report in addition to the
regular quarterly report required by State. This report will be attached to the quarterly agency
periodic report.  For each task, Recipient will report:

a. The task status, including any issues encountered and the planned resolution;
b. Hours expended on the tasks to date
c. The cost for each task;  and 
d. The percentage of completion. 

Task costs will specify labor and non-labor expenses including staff travel and professional
consultant expenses, as applicable. Labor expenses shall be reported as an hourly labor rate
multiplied by the number of hours expended to date on the task. 

B. Preventive Maintenance

Recipient will request reimbursement for covered expenses incurred during each period
as prescribed by State and described in Recipient's preventive maintenance plan for this
Agreement. Recipient must maintain and provide supporting documents detailing the total
expenses for allowable maintenance activities incurred during the period. Recipient may list costs
on a form provided by State, or provide vendor invoices. 

C. Purchased Services

Recipient will request reimbursement for covered expenses incurred during each period as
prescribed by State. Copies of invoices must be submitted for all vendor charges. Invoices from
purchase service contractors should be attached to each reimbursement request and show a
breakdown of expenses, a description of the service provided (hours, rate, quantity of service),
the date(s) of the service, and other relevant service performance information. In-house charges
must be documented showing time specifically associated with the project. 

In addition, Recipient must provide a summary of the work performed pursuant to this
agreement in its APR. Photographs of public transit, and related operations, are encouraged to
memorialize the achievement of project deliverables.

 
 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185

Page 15 of  21

EXHIBIT B

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 

The information below will assist auditors to prepare a report in compliance with the requirements
of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F.
 

This Agreement is financed by the funding source indicated below:
 

Federal Program Federal Funding Agency CFDA Number Total Federal Funding
49 U.S.C. 5310 U.S. Department of Transportation

Federal Transit Administration
915 Second Avenue, Suite 3142
Seattle, WA  98174

20.513 (5310) $122,043.00

 
Administered By  
Public Transportation Division
555 13th Street NE
Salem, OR  97301-4179

 



Page 16 of  21

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185

 
EXHIBIT C

 

Insurance Requirements
 

Subagreement Insurance Requirements

GENERAL.

Recipient shall require in its first tier subagreements with entities that are not units of local 
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES 
AND AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, 
NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance 
under the subagreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout 
the duration of the subagreement.  The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or 
entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State 
of Oregon and that are acceptable to State.  Recipient shall not authorize work to begin under 
subagreements until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, Recipient shall monitor continued 
compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent basis. Recipient shall 
incorporate appropriate provisions in the subagreement permitting it to enforce compliance with 
the insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance.  In 
no event shall Recipient permit work under a subagreement when Recipient is aware that the 
contractor is not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, "first tier" 
means a subagreement in which the Recipient is a Party.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

WORKERS COMPENSATION. 
All employers, including Contractor, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, 
shall comply with ORS 656.017 and shall provide Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage 
for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2).  
The coverage shall include Employer's Liability Insurance with limits not less than $500,000 each 
accident. Contractor shall require compliance with these requirements in each of its 
subcontractor contracts.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. 
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be issued on an occurrence basis covering bodily 
injury and property damage and shall include personal and advertising injury liability, products 
and completed operations, and contractual liability coverage. When work to be performed includes 
operations or activity within 50 feet of any railroad property, bridge, trestle, track, roadbed, tunnel, 
underpass or crossing, the Contractor shall provide the Contractual Liability - Railroads CG 24 
17 endorsement, or equivalent, on the Commercial General Liability policy. Amounts below are a 
minimum requirement as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.

Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000.

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY. 
Automobile Liability Insurance covering Contractor's business-related automobile use covering all 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles for bodily injury and property. Amount below is a minimum 
requirement as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000. 

This coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance (with 
separate limits for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability).



Page 17 of  21

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185

 
EXCESS/UMBRELLA LIABILITY.
A combination of primary and Excess/Umbrella Liability Insurance may be used to meet the required 
limits of insurance.

ADDITIONAL INSURED.  
The liability insurance coverages, except Professional Liability or Workers' Compensation/
Employer's Liability, if included, must include the "State of Oregon, the Oregon Transportation 
Commission and the Department of Transportation, and their respective officers, 
members, agents and employees" as an endorsed Additional Insured but only with respect 
to the contractor's activities to be performed under the Subagreement. Coverage shall be primary 
and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

Additional Insured Endorsements on the Commercial General Liability shall be written on ISO Form 
CG 20 10 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations and ISO 
Form CG 20 37 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of completed operations. 
Additional Insured Endorsements shall be submitted with the Certificate(s) of Insurance and must 
be acceptable to the Recipient.

"TAIL" COVERAGE.  
If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as professional liability 
insurance or pollution liability insurance,  the contractor shall maintain either "tail" coverage 
or continuous "claims made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous 
"claims made" coverage is on or before the effective date of the Subagreement, for a minimum 
of twenty-four (24) months following the later of : (i) the contractor's completion and Recipient's 
acceptance of all Services required under the Subagreement or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty 
periods provided under the Subagreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing twenty-four (24) month 
requirement, if the contractor elects to maintain "tail" coverage and if the maximum time period 
"tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the twenty-four (24) month 
period described above, then the contractor may request and State may grant approval of  the 
maximum "tail " coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace.  If State approval is 
granted, the contractor shall maintain "tail" coverage for the maximum time period that "tail" 
coverage is reasonably available in the marketplace. 

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. 
The contractor or its insurer must provide thirty (30) days' written notice to Recipient before 
cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal 
of the required insurance coverage(s). The Recipient shall immediately notify State of any 
change in insurance coverage.

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. 
Recipient shall obtain from the contractor a certificate(s) of insurance for all required insurance 
before the contractor performs under the Subcontract. The certificate(s) or an attached 
endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are endorsed on the policy as 
Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a "claims made" basis, the extended reporting period 
applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims made" coverage.

Recipient Insurance Requirements

GENERAL.

Recipient shall: i) obtain at the Recipient's expense the insurance specified under TYPES AND 
AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE 
OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance under 
this Agreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force and at its own expense 
throughout the duration of this Agreement. Recipient shall obtain the following insurance from 
insurance companies or entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue 
coverage in the State of Oregon and that are acceptable to State. Coverage shall be primary and 
non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance with the exception of Professional 
Liability and Workers' Compensation. Recipient shall pay for all deductibles, self-insurance retention 
and self-insurance, if any.



Page 18 of  21

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185

 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENT REVIEW.
Recipient agrees to periodic review of insurance requirements by State under this Agreement and 
to provide updated requirements as mutually agreed upon by Recipient and State.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

WORKERS COMPENSATION. 
All employers, including Recipient, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, shall 
comply with ORS 656.017 and shall provide Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage for 
those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2). The 
coverage shall include Employers liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 
must be included. 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. 
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be issued on an occurrence basis covering bodily 
injury, death, and property damage and shall include personal and advertising injury liability, 
products and completed operations and contractual liability coverage.  When work to be performed 
includes operations or activity within 50 feet of any railroad property, bridge, trestle, track, 
roadbed, tunnel, underpass or crossing, the Contractor shall provide the Contractual Liability 
- Railroads CG 24 17 endorsement, or equivalent, on the Commercial General Liability policy. 
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall not be less than the following amounts as determined 
by State:

Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.

Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000.

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY. 
Automobile Liability Insurance covering business-related automobile use on all owned, non-owned 
or hired vehicles for bodily injury and property. Automobile Liability Insurance shall not be less 
than the following amount as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000. 

This coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance (with 
separate limits for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability).

EXCESS/UMBRELLA LIABILITY.
A combination of primary and Excess/Umbrella Liability Insurance may be used to meet the required 
limits of insurance.

ADDITIONAL INSURED. 
The liability insurance coverages, except Professional Liability or Workers' Compensation/
Employer's Liability, if included, must include the "State of Oregon, the Oregon Transportation 
Commission and the Department of Transportation, and their respective officers, 
members, agents and employees"  as an endorsed Additional Insured but only with respect 
to the Recipient's activities to be performed under this Agreement. Coverage shall be primary and 
non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

Additional Insured Endorsements on the Commercial General Liability shall be written on ISO Form 
CG 20 10 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations and ISO 
Form CG 20 37 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of completed operations. 
Additional Insured Endorsements shall be submitted with the Certificate(s) of Insurance and must 
be acceptable to the Recipient.

"TAIL" COVERAGE. 
If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as professional liability 
insurance, Recipient shall maintain either "tail" coverage or continuous "claims made" liability 



Page 19 of  21

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185

 
coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous "claims made" coverage is on or before 
the effective date of this Agreement, for a minimum of 24 months following the later of: (i) 
Recipient's completion and State's acceptance of all Services required under this Agreement or, 
(ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing 24-month requirement, if Recipient elects to maintain "tail" coverage and if the maximum 
time period "tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the 24-month period 
described above, then Recipient may request and State may grant approval of the maximum "tail" 
coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace. If State approval is granted, Recipient 
shall maintain "tail" coverage for the maximum time period that "tail" coverage is reasonably 
available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. 
Recipient or its insurer must provide 30 days' written notice to State before cancellation of, material 
change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance 
coverage(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. 
State shall obtain from Recipient a certificate(s) of insurance for all required insurance before the 
effective date of this Agreement. The certificate(s) or an attached endorsement must specify: i) all 
entities and individuals who are endorsed on the policy as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance 
on a "claims made" basis, the extended reporting period applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims 
made" coverage.

STATE ACCEPTANCE.
All insurance providers are subject to State acceptance.  If requested by State, Recipient shall 
provide complete copies of insurance policies, endorsements, self-insurance documents and related 
insurance documents to State's representatives responsible for verification of the insurance 
coverages required under this Exhibit C.



Page 20 of  21

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185

 
EXHIBIT D

 

Summary of Federal Requirements and Incorporating by Reference
Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for FTA Grants and

Cooperative Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal
Transit Administration Master Agreement ("Master Agreement")

 

Recipient and Recipient's subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s), at any tier, if any, 
must comply with all applicable federal requirements contained in the Certifications and Assurances 
available at www.transit.dot.gov.  The Certifications and Assurances, including as they may be 
changed during the term of this Agreement, are by this reference incorporated herein.

Recipient further agrees to comply with all applicable requirements included in the Master 
Agreement that is signed and attested to by State. This Master Agreement is incorporated by 
reference and made part of this Agreement. Said Master Agreement is available upon request from 
State by calling (503) 986-3300, or at www.transit.dot.gov. Without limiting the foregoing, the 
following is a summary of some requirements applicable to transactions covered by this Agreement 
and the funds described in Exhibit A:

1. Recipient shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 State 252, 42 U.S.C. § 
2000d) and the regulations of the United States Department of Transportation (49 CFR 21, 
Subtitle A). Recipient shall exclude no person on the grounds of race, religion, color, sex, 
age, national origin, or disability from the benefits of aid received under this Agreement. 
Recipient will report to State on at least an annual basis the following information: any active 
lawsuits or complaints, including dates, summary of allegation, status of lawsuit or complaint 
including whether the Parties entered into a consent decree.

2. Recipient shall comply with FTA regulations in Title 49 CFR 27 Nondiscrimination on the Basis 
of Disability in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance which implements 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 49 
CFR 37, and 49 CFR 38.

3. Recipient shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award 
and performance of any USDOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program 
or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. Recipient shall take all necessary and reasonable steps 
under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-
assisted contracts. Recipient's DBE program, if applicable, as required by 49 CFR part 26 
and as approved by USDOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation 
of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a 
violation of this agreement. Upon notification to State of its failure to carry out its approved 
program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under part 26 and may, 
in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the 
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

4. Recipient must include the following language in each subagreement Recipient signs with a 
subcontractor or subrecipient:

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, or sex in the performance of this Agreement. The contractor, subrecipient, 
or subcontractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award 
and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor, subrecipient, or 
subcontractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which 
may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as Recipient deems 
appropriate.

5. Recipient and contractors receiving in excess of $100,000 in federal funds, other than Indian 
tribes, must certify to State that they have not and will not use federal funds to pay for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal department or 
Agency, a member of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with 
obtaining any federal grant, cooperative agreement or any other federal award. If non-federal 



Page 21 of  21

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35185

 
funds have been used to support lobbying activities in connection with the Project, Recipient 
shall complete Standard Form LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying and submit the form 
to State at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs an event that requires 
disclosure. Restrictions on lobbying do not apply to influencing policy decisions. Examples of 
prohibited activities include seeking support for a particular application or bid and seeking 
a congressional earmark.



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 35133

Planning   5305

 

Page 1 of  19

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the State of Oregon, acting by and 
through its Department of Transportation, Public Transportation Division, hereinafter referred to as 
"State," and Morrow County, hereinafter referred to as "Recipient," and collectively referred to 
as the "Parties."
 

 

AGREEMENT
1. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2021 or the 

date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law.  Unless 
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for 
Project Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2023 (the "Expiration Date").  No Grant Funds 
are available for any expenditures after the Expiration Date.  State's obligation to disburse 
Grant Funds under this Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

2. Agreement Documents.  This Agreement consists of this document and the following 
documents, all of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit A:  Project Description and Budget

Exhibit B:  Financial Information

Exhibit C:  Subagreement Insurance Requirements and Recipient Insurance 
Requirements

Exhibit D: Summary of Federal Requirements, incorporating by reference Annual 
List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Grants 
and Cooperative Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal Transit 
Administration Master Agreement

Exhibit E: Information required by 2 CFR 200.331(a), may be accessed at 
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/RPTD/Pages/index.aspx, Oregon Public Transit 
Information System (OPTIS), as the information becomes available

In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement, 
the language in the document with the highest precedence shall control.  The precedence of 
each of the documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence 
to lowest precedence:  Exhibit D; Exhibit E; this Agreement without Exhibits; Exhibit A; Exhibit 
B; Exhibit C.

3. Project Cost; Grant Funds; Match.  The total project cost is estimated at $25,000.00.  In 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, State shall provide Recipient an 
amount not to exceed $20,000.00 (the "Grant Funds") for eligible costs described in Section 
6.a. hereof.  Recipient shall provide matching funds for all Project Costs as described in Exhibit 
A. Recipient will be responsible for all Project Costs not covered by the Grant Funds.  

4. Project.  The Grant Funds shall be used solely for the project described in Exhibit A (the 
"Project") and shall not be used for any other purpose. No Grant Funds will be disbursed for any 
changes to the Project unless such changes are approved by State by amendment pursuant 
to Section 11.a hereof.

5. Progress Reports.  Recipient shall submit quarterly progress reports to State no later than 
45 days after the close of each quarterly reporting period.  Reporting periods are July through 
September, October through December, January through March, and April through June. 
Reports must be in a format acceptable to State and must be entered into the Oregon Public 
Transit Information System (OPTIS), which may be accessed at https://www.oregon.gov/
odot/RPTD/Pages/index.aspx.  If Recipient is unable to access OPTIS, reports must be sent 
to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us.  Reports shall include a statement of revenues and 
expenditures for each quarter, including documentation of local match contributions and 
expenditures. State reserves the right to request such additional information as may be 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133
 

Page 2 of  19

necessary to comply with federal or state reporting requirements. 
6. Disbursement and Recovery of Grant Funds.

a. Disbursement Generally.  State shall reimburse eligible costs incurred in carrying out 
the Project, up to the Grant Funds amount provided in Section 3. Reimbursements shall 
be made by State within 30 days of State's approval of a request for reimbursement from 
Recipient using a format that is acceptable to State. Requests for reimbursement must 
be entered into OPTIS or sent to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us. Eligible costs are 
the reasonable and necessary costs incurred by Recipient, or under a subagreement 
described in Section 9 of this Agreement, in performance of the Project and that are not 
excluded from reimbursement by State, either by this Agreement or by exclusion as a 
result of financial review or audit.

b. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds 
to Recipient is subject to satisfaction, with respect to each disbursement, of each of the 
following conditions precedent:

i. State has received funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable 
administrative discretion, to make the disbursement.

ii. Recipient is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement including, without 
limitation, Exhibit D and the requirements incorporated by reference in Exhibit D.

iii. Recipient's representations and warranties set forth in Section 7 hereof are true 
and correct on the date of disbursement with the same effect as though made on 
the date of disbursement.

iv. Recipient has provided to State a request for reimbursement using a format that is 
acceptable to and approved by State.  Recipient must submit its final request for 
reimbursement following completion of the Project and no later than 60 days after 
the Expiration Date. Failure to submit the final request for reimbursement within 
60 days after the Expiration Date could result in non-payment.

c. Recovery of Grant Funds.
i. Recovery of Misexpended Funds or Nonexpended Funds. Any Grant Funds disbursed 

to Recipient under this Agreement that are either (i) disbursed but unexpended 
as of the Expiration Date ("Unexpended Funds") or (ii) expended in violation or 
contravention of one or more of the provisions of  this Agreement ("Misexpended 
Funds") must be returned to State. Recipient shall return all Misexpended Funds 
to State no later than 15 days after State's written demand. Recipient shall return 
all Unexpended Funds to State within 15 days after the earlier of expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.

ii. Recovery of Funds upon Termination. If this Agreement is terminated under either 
Section 10(a)(i) or Section 10(a)(v) below, Recipient shall return to State all funds 
disbursed to Recipient within 15 days after State's written demand for the same.

7. Representations and Warranties of Recipient.  Recipient represents and warrants to State 
as follows:

a. Organization and Authority. Recipient is duly organized and validly existing under the 
laws of the State of Oregon and is eligible to receive the Grant Funds. Recipient has full 
power, authority, and legal right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its 
obligations hereunder, and the making and performance by Recipient of this Agreement 
(1) have been duly authorized by all necessary action of Recipient and (2) do not and 
will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any 
court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision 
of Recipient's Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, if applicable, (3) do not and will not 
result in the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other 
agreement or instrument to which Recipient is a party or by which Recipient or any of 
its properties may be bound or affected. No authorization, consent, license, approval 
of, filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or 
supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by Recipient 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133
 

Page 3 of  19

of this Agreement.
b. Binding Obligation.  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by 

Recipient and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Recipient, enforceable in 
accordance with its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar 
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally.

c. No Solicitation.  Recipient's officers, employees, and agents shall neither solicit nor 
accept gratuities, favors, or any item of monetary value from contractors, potential 
contractors, or parties to subagreements, except as permitted by applicable law. No 
member or delegate to the Congress of the United States or State of Oregon employee 
shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or any benefit arising therefrom.

d. No Debarment.  Neither Recipient nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, or 
voluntarily excluded from this federally-assisted transaction, or proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participating in this Agreement by any 
state or federal agency. Recipient agrees to notify State immediately if it is debarred, 
suspended or otherwise excluded from this federally-assisted transaction for any reason 
or if circumstances change that may affect this status, including without limitation upon 
any relevant indictments or convictions of crimes. 

 

The warranties set in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other warranties 
set forth in this Agreement or implied by law.

8. Records Maintenance and Access; Audit.
a. Records, Access to Records and Facilities. Recipient shall make and retain proper 

and complete books of record and account and maintain all fiscal records related to 
this Agreement and the Project in accordance with all applicable generally accepted 
accounting principles, generally accepted governmental auditing standards and state 
minimum standards for audits of municipal corporations. Recipient shall require that 
each of its subrecipients and subcontractors complies with these requirements. State, 
the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon (Secretary), the United States Department 
of Transportation (USDOT), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and their duly 
authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, papers and 
records of Recipient that are directly related to this Agreement, the funds provided 
hereunder, or the Project for the purpose of making audits and examinations. In addition, 
State, the Secretary, USDOT, FTA and their duly authorized representatives may make 
and retain excerpts, copies, and transcriptions of the foregoing books, documents, 
papers, and records. Recipient shall permit authorized representatives of State, the 
Secretary, USDOT and FTA to perform site reviews of the Project, and to inspect all 
vehicles, real property, facilities and equipment purchased by Recipient as part of the 
Project, and any transportation services rendered by Recipient.

b. Retention of Records. Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, 
papers, and records that are directly related to this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, records relating to capital assets funded by this Agreement, the Grant Funds 
or the Project for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer period as may be required 
by other provisions of this Agreement or applicable law, following the Expiration Date. 
If there are unresolved audit questions at the end of the six-year period, Recipient shall 
retain the records until the questions are resolved. 

c. Expenditure Records.  Recipient shall document the expenditure of all Grant Funds 
disbursed by State under this Agreement.  Recipient shall create and maintain all 
expenditure records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in 
sufficient detail to permit State to verify how the Grant Funds were expended.

d. Audit Requirements.
i. Recipients receiving federal funds in excess of $750,000 are subject to audit 

conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F. Recipient, 
if subject to this requirement, shall at Recipient's own expense submit to State, 
Public Transportation Division, 555 13th Street NE, Suite 3, Salem, Oregon, 
97301-4179 or to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us, a copy of, or electronic 
link to, its annual audit subject to this requirement covering the funds expended 
under this Agreement and shall submit or cause to be submitted, the annual audit 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133
 

Page 4 of  19

of any subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s) of Recipient responsible 
for the financial management of funds received under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall indemnify, save, protect and hold harmless State from the cost of 
any audits or special investigations performed by the Secretary with respect to the 
funds expended under this Agreement. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that 
any audit costs incurred by Recipient as a result of allegations of fraud, waste or 
abuse are ineligible for reimbursement under this or any other agreement between 
Recipient and State.

 This Section 8 shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement.
9. Recipient Subagreements and Procurements

a. Subagreements.  Recipient may enter into agreements with sub-recipients, contractors 
or subcontractors (collectively, "subagreements") for performance of the Project.

i. All subagreements must be in writing executed by Recipient and must incorporate 
and pass through all of the applicable requirements of this Agreement to the other 
party or parties to the subagreement(s). Use of a subagreement does not relieve 
Recipient of its responsibilities under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall require all of its contractors performing work under this Agreement 
to name State as a third-party beneficiary of Recipient's subagreement with the 
contractor and to name State as an additional or "dual" obligee on contractors' 
payment and performance bonds.

iii. Recipient shall provide State with a copy of any signed subagreement, as well as 
any other purchasing or contracting documentation, upon request by State. This 
paragraph 9.a.iii. shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

iv. Recipient must report to State any material breach of a term or condition of a 
subagreement within ten (10) days of Recipient discovering the breach.

b. Recipient shall review the Best Practices Procurement Manual, a technical assistance 
manual prepared by the FTA, available on the FTA website: www.fta.dot.gov/
grants/13054_6037.html

c. Subagreement indemnity; insurance

i. Recipient's subagreement(s) shall require the other party to such 
subagreements(s) that is not a unit of local government as defined in ORS 
190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless State and 
its officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims, 
actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys' 
fees, arising from a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260, 
caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or 
willful acts or omissions of  the other party to Recipient's subagreement 
or any of such party's officers, agents, employees or subcontractors 
("Claims"). It is the specific intention of the Parties that the State shall, 
in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or 
willful acts or omissions of the State, be indemnified by the other party to 
Recipient's subagreement(s) from and against any and all Claims.

ii. Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Recipient's 
subrecipient(s), contractor(s) nor subcontractor(s) (collectively 
"Subrecipients"), nor any attorney engaged by Recipient's 
Subrecipient(s), shall defend any claim in the name of the State or any 
agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal representative 
of the State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior written 
consent of the Oregon Attorney General. The State may, at any time at 
its election, assume its own defense and settlement in the event that 
it determines that Recipient's Subrecipient is prohibited from defending 
State or that Recipient's Subrecipient is not adequately defending State's 
interests, or that an important governmental principle is at issue or that 
it is in the best interests of State to do so. State reserves all rights to 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133
 

Page 5 of  19

pursue claims it may have against Recipient's Subrecipient if State elects 
to assume its own defense.

iii. Recipient shall require the other party, or parties, to each of its subagreements that 
are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003 to obtain and maintain 
insurance requirements provided in Exhibit C to this Agreement. Recipient may 
specify insurance requirements of its contractor(s) above the minimum insurance 
requirements specified in Exhibit C. Recipient shall verify its contractor(s) meet the 
insurance requirements in Exhibit C.

d. Procurements. Recipient shall make purchases of any equipment, materials, or services 
for the Project under procedures that comply with Oregon law, as applicable, including 
all applicable provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code and rules, and in 
conformance to FTA Circular 4220.1F, Third Party Contracting Requirements including:

i. All applicable clauses required by federal statute, executive orders and their 
implementing regulations are included in each competitive procurement;

ii. All procurement transactions are conducted in a manner providing full and open 
competition;

iii. Procurements exclude the use of statutorily or administratively imposed in-state 
or geographic preference in the evaluation of bids or proposals (with exception of 
locally controlled licensing requirements);

iv. Construction, architectural and engineering procurements are based on Brooks Act 
procedures unless the procurement is subject to ORS 279C.100 to 279C.125. 

e. Conflict of Interest. Recipient's public officials shall comply with Oregon's government 
ethics laws, ORS 244.010 et seq., as those laws may be subsequently amended.

10. Termination
a. Termination by State.  State may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of 

written notice of termination to Recipient, or at such later date as may be established 
by State in such written notice, if:

i. Recipient fails to perform the Project within the time specified herein or any 
extension thereof or commencement, continuation or timely completion of the 
Project by Recipient is, for any reason, rendered improbable, impossible, or illegal; 
or

ii. State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure 
authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement; or

iii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in 
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding 
under this Agreement; or

iv. The Project would not produce results commensurate with the further expenditure 
of funds; or

v. Recipient takes any action pertaining to this Agreement without the approval of 
State and which under the provisions of this Agreement would have required the 
approval of State.

b. Termination by Recipient.  Recipient may terminate this Agreement effective upon 
delivery of written notice of termination to State, or at such later date as may be 
established by Recipient in such written notice, if:

i. The requisite local funding to continue the Project becomes unavailable to 
Recipient; or

ii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in 
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding 
under this Agreement.

c. Termination by Either Party.  Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon at 
least ten days' notice to the other Party and failure of the other Party to cure within the 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133
 

Page 6 of  19

period provided in the notice, if the other Party fails to comply with any of the terms 
of this Agreement.

11. General Provisions
a. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended or extended only by a written 

instrument signed by both Parties and approved as required by applicable law.
b. Contribution.

i. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging 
a tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against State 
or Recipient with respect to which the other Party may have liability, the notified 
Party must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and 
deliver to the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with 
respect to the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense 
of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own 
choosing. Receipt by a Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and 
meaningful opportunity for the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and 
settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions 
precedent to that Party's liability with respect to the Third Party Claim.

ii. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 11.c below, with respect to a Third Party 
Claim for which State is jointly liable with Recipient (or would be if joined in the 
Third Party Claim ), State shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including 
attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion as is 
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the State on the one hand and of 
the Recipient on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in 
such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other 
relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of State on the one hand 
and of Recipient on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among 
other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and 
opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, 
judgments, fines or settlement amounts. State's contribution amount in any 
instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon 
law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole 
liability in the proceeding.

iii. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 11.c below, with respect to a Third 
Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with State (or would be if joined 
in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the amount of expenses 
(including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement 
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State in such proportion 
as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and 
of State on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant 
equitable considerations. The relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of 
State on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, 
the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to 
correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines 
or settlement amounts. Recipient's contribution amount in any instance is capped to 
the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon 
Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability in the proceeding.

c. Indemnification.
i. Subject to any limitations imposed by State law and the Oregon Constitution, 

Recipient agrees to the following contract-related indemnification for all projects 
authorized under this Agreement:

ii. Where Recipient contracts for services or performs project management for a 
project, Recipient shall accept all responsibility, defend lawsuits, indemnify, and 
hold State harmless, for all contract-related claims and suits. This includes but is 
not limited to all contract claims or suits brought by any contractor, whether arising 
out of the contractor's work, Recipient's supervision of any individual project or 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133
 

Page 7 of  19

contract, or Recipient's failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement.
 

Sections 11.b and 11.c shall survive termination of this Agreement.
d. Insurance. Recipient shall meet the insurance requirements within Exhibit C. 
e. Dispute Resolution.  The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute 

arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly 
selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short 
of litigation.

f. Responsibility for Grant Funds.  Any recipient of Grant Funds, pursuant to this 
Agreement with State, shall assume sole liability for that recipient's breach of the 
conditions of this Agreement, and shall, upon recipient's breach of conditions that 
requires State to return funds to the FTA, hold harmless and indemnify State for an 
amount equal to the funds received under this Agreement; or if legal limitations apply 
to the indemnification ability of the recipient of Grant Funds, the indemnification amount 
shall be the maximum amount of funds available for expenditure, including any available 
contingency funds or other available non-appropriated funds, up to the amount received 
under this Agreement.

g. Duplicate Payment.  Recipient is not entitled to compensation or any other form of 
duplicate, overlapping or multiple payments for the same work performed under this 
Agreement from any agency of the State of Oregon or the United States of America or 
any other party, organization or individual.

h. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  State and Recipient are the only Parties to this 
Agreement and are the only Parties entitled to enforce its terms.  Nothing in this 
Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit 
or right, whether directly or indirectly, to a third person unless such a third person is 
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as an intended beneficiary 
of the terms of this Agreement.

Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the Federal Government, absent express written 
consent by the Federal Government, is not a party to this Agreement and shall not be 
subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Recipient, contractor or any other party 
(whether or not a party to the Agreement) pertaining to any matter resulting from the 
this Agreement.

i. Notices.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any 
communications between the Parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be 
given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, email, or mailing the same, postage 
prepaid, to Recipient Contact or State Contact at the address or number set forth 
on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other addresses or numbers as 
either Party may hereafter indicate pursuant to this subsection. Any communication 
or notice personally delivered shall be deemed to be given when actually delivered. 
Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed to be given when 
receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine, and to be effective 
against State, such facsimile transmission must be confirmed by telephone notice to 
State Contact. Any communication by email shall be deemed to be given when the 
recipient of the email acknowledges receipt of the email. Any communication or notice 
mailed shall be deemed to be given when received.  

j. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles 
of conflicts of law.  Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between 
State (or any other agency or department of the State of Oregon) and Recipient that 
arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and 
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County in the State of Oregon.  In no event 
shall this section be construed as a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense 
or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on 
the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any 
Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court.  EACH PARTY HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE 
EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT, WAIVES ANY OBJECTION TO VENUE, AND 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133
 

Page 8 of  19

WAIVES ANY CLAIM THAT SUCH FORUM IS AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.
k. Compliance with Law.  Recipient shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, 

regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Agreement or to the 
implementation of the Project, as applicable to Recipient, including without limitation 
as described in Exhibit D.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Recipient 
expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and administrative rules established 
pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (v) all other applicable requirements of federal and 
state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.

l. Independent Contractor.  Recipient shall perform the Project as an independent 
contractor and not as an agent or employee of State.  Recipient has no right or authority 
to incur or create any obligation for or legally bind State in any way.  State cannot and 
will not control the means or manner by which Recipient performs the Project, except 
as specifically set forth in this Agreement.  Recipient is responsible for determining the 
appropriate means and manner of performing the Project.  Recipient acknowledges and 
agrees that Recipient is not an "officer", "employee", or "agent" of State, as those terms 
are used in ORS 30.265, and shall not make representations to third parties to the 
contrary.  

m. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining 
terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties 
shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular term 
or provision held to be invalid.

n. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts (by 
facsimile or otherwise), each of which is an original and all of which together are deemed 
one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories 
to the same counterpart.

o. Integration and Waiver.  This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the 
entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof.  There are no 
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein 
regarding this Agreement.  The delay or failure of either Party to enforce any provision of 
this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that Party of that or any other provision.  
Recipient, by the signature below of its authorized representative, hereby acknowledges 
that it has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms 
and conditions.

p. Survival. The following provisions survive termination of this Agreement: Sections 6.c., 
8 and 11.

 
 



Page 9 of  19

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133
 
The Parties, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that each Party has read this 
Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.
 

The Oregon Transportation Commission on October 20, 2010, approved Delegation Order Number 
OTC-01, which authorizes the Director of the Oregon Department of 
Transportation to administer programs related to public transit.

On March 1, 2012, the Director approved Delegation Order Number DIR-04, which 
delegates the authority to approve this Agreement to the Public Transportation 
Division Administrator.
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW



Page 10 of  19

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133
 
Morrow County, by and through its

 
 
By  
(Legally designated representative)

 
Name  
(printed)

 
Date  
 
By  
 
Name  
(printed)

 
Date  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(If required in local process)

 
By  
Recipient's Legal Counsel
 
Date  
 
 
Recipient Contact:
Katie Imes
PO Box 495
Heppner, OR 97836
1 (541) 676-5667
kimes@co.morrow.or.us
 
State Contact:
Arla Miller
555 13th Street NE
Salem, OR 97301-4179
1 (503) 949-5415
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

 State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation
 
By  
Karyn Criswell
Public Transportation Division Administrator
 
Date  
 
 
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

 
By Arla Miller

 
Date 06/04/2021

 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $150,000)

 
 

N/A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133

 

Page 11 of  19

EXHIBIT A

Project Description and Budget
 
Project Description/Statement of Work  
 
Project Title: 5304 Morrow County 35133
Updating/Rewrite Morrow County Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan.

Item #1: Short Range Transportation Planning
 

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$25,000.00 $20,000.00 $5,000.00 State Funds

Sub Total $25,000.00 $20,000.00 $5,000.00
 

Grand Total $25,000.00 $20,000.00 $5,000.00
 

 
1. BACKGROUND 

Recipient shall update the Coordinated Public Transit Human Services Transportation Plan in
preparation of the 2023-2025 biennium.

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This Agreement provides funding to update the Recipient's Human Services Coordinated Plan.  
The purpose of periodic updates is to: assess existing mobility systems; evaluate the
accessibility and connectivity needs (and resources) of communities; explore partnerships with
employment, housing, education, and economic drivers of demand; engage/empower diverse
groups of riders and stakeholders; and improve community and system health, safety, and
environmental outcomes; consider new alliances with city, county, and regional interests to grow
the resources base; and develop/prioritize strategies to address gaps and opportunities through
coordination.

Upon adoption, the Coordinated Plan will inform local investments that sustain and grow public
transit systems as they advance the ten goals of the Oregon Public Transportation Plan. 

Section 5304 reimbursements under this project shall not exceed $20,000.

3. PROJECT DELIVERABLES, TASKS and SCHEDULE

Recipient, in coordination with its regional transit coordinator, will conduct a procurement for a
planning consultant, or use internal staff where sufficient planning capacity exists, to produce a
plan that includes the following elements:

A) TASK ONE: Needs Assessment
a. Identify any transportation needs not being met
b. Identify populations and locations needing transportation
c. Assess travel patterns, including origins and destinations
d. Assess first and last mile connections
e. Assess the type of transportation needed

B) TASK TWO: Financial Cost Estimates for Implementing Options and Outcomes
a. Determine the funds needed to improve the system
b. Determine the cost of new services that can be implemented immediately
c. Determine the service that will require long-term financial planning
e. Identify fund source(s)

C) TASK THREE: Implementation Plan
Describe the implementation plan and include timelines and milestones for completion of tasks.

D) TASK FOUR: Public Participation Documentation 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133

 

Page 12 of  19

Public participation can be in the form of surveying, public meetings, and meetings with
stakeholder groups. Participation may include the following: transportation providers, riders,
social and governmental stakeholders, and representatives of Title VI populations (i.e., low-
income and minority groups, veterans, seniors and individuals with disabilities.)

Documentation of public participation could include survey results, meeting minutes, media
content, reports, advertisements and other visual and written forms of community engagement.

Recipient will submit final adopted Coordinated Plan to State to Review and retain in files.

4. PROJECT ACCOUNTING and MATCH FUNDING

Sources of funding that may be used as Recipient's matching funds for this Agreement include
local funds; Statewide Transportation Improvement Formula Funds; Special Transportation
Formula Funds; service contract revenue, advertisement and other earned income; cash
donations; and verifiable in-kind contributions integral to the project budget. In-kind
contributions claimed as matching funding must be reported to State. Recipient may not use
passenger fares as matching funding.

5. REPORTING and INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

Recipient will request reimbursement for covered expenses incurred during each period as
prescribed by State. Copies of invoices must be submitted for all products, services, and vendor
charges. In-house charges must be documented showing time specifically associated with the
project. In addition, Recipient must provide a summary of the work performed to date pursuant
to this Agreement in each agency periodic report.  Photographs of the planning process are
encouraged to memorialize the achievement of project deliverables, if applicable. 

Recipient will submit a draft or final plan, as appropriate, before final payment will be made by
State. 



Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133

Page 13 of  19

EXHIBIT B

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 

The information below will assist auditors to prepare a report in compliance with the requirements
of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F.
 

This Agreement is financed by the funding source indicated below:
 

Federal Program Federal Funding Agency CFDA Number Total Federal Funding
49 U.S.C. 5305 U.S. Department of Transportation

Federal Transit Administration
915 Second Avenue, Suite 3142
Seattle, WA  98174

20.515 (5304) $20,000.00

 
Administered By  
Public Transportation Division
555 13th Street NE
Salem, OR  97301-4179

 



Page 14 of  19

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133

 
EXHIBIT C

 

Insurance Requirements
 

Subagreement Insurance Requirements

GENERAL.

Recipient shall require in its first tier subagreements with entities that are not units of local 
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES 
AND AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, 
NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance 
under the subagreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout 
the duration of the subagreement.  The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or 
entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State 
of Oregon and that are acceptable to State.  Recipient shall not authorize work to begin under 
subagreements until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, Recipient shall monitor continued 
compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent basis. Recipient shall 
incorporate appropriate provisions in the subagreement permitting it to enforce compliance with 
the insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance.  In 
no event shall Recipient permit work under a subagreement when Recipient is aware that the 
contractor is not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, "first tier" 
means a subagreement in which the Recipient is a Party.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

WORKERS COMPENSATION. 
All employers, including Contractor, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, 
shall comply with ORS 656.017 and shall provide Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage 
for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2).  
The coverage shall include Employer's Liability Insurance with limits not less than $500,000 each 
accident. Contractor shall require compliance with these requirements in each of its 
subcontractor contracts.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. 
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be issued on an occurrence basis covering bodily 
injury and property damage and shall include personal and advertising injury liability, products 
and completed operations, and contractual liability coverage. When work to be performed includes 
operations or activity within 50 feet of any railroad property, bridge, trestle, track, roadbed, tunnel, 
underpass or crossing, the Contractor shall provide the Contractual Liability - Railroads CG 24 
17 endorsement, or equivalent, on the Commercial General Liability policy. Amounts below are a 
minimum requirement as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.

Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000.

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY. 
Automobile Liability Insurance covering Contractor's business-related automobile use covering all 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles for bodily injury and property. Amount below is a minimum 
requirement as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000. 

This coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance (with 
separate limits for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability).



Page 15 of  19

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133

 
EXCESS/UMBRELLA LIABILITY.
A combination of primary and Excess/Umbrella Liability Insurance may be used to meet the required 
limits of insurance.

ADDITIONAL INSURED.  
The liability insurance coverages, except Professional Liability or Workers' Compensation/
Employer's Liability, if included, must include the "State of Oregon, the Oregon Transportation 
Commission and the Department of Transportation, and their respective officers, 
members, agents and employees" as an endorsed Additional Insured but only with respect 
to the contractor's activities to be performed under the Subagreement. Coverage shall be primary 
and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

Additional Insured Endorsements on the Commercial General Liability shall be written on ISO Form 
CG 20 10 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations and ISO 
Form CG 20 37 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of completed operations. 
Additional Insured Endorsements shall be submitted with the Certificate(s) of Insurance and must 
be acceptable to the Recipient.

"TAIL" COVERAGE.  
If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as professional liability 
insurance or pollution liability insurance,  the contractor shall maintain either "tail" coverage 
or continuous "claims made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous 
"claims made" coverage is on or before the effective date of the Subagreement, for a minimum 
of twenty-four (24) months following the later of : (i) the contractor's completion and Recipient's 
acceptance of all Services required under the Subagreement or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty 
periods provided under the Subagreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing twenty-four (24) month 
requirement, if the contractor elects to maintain "tail" coverage and if the maximum time period 
"tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the twenty-four (24) month 
period described above, then the contractor may request and State may grant approval of  the 
maximum "tail " coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace.  If State approval is 
granted, the contractor shall maintain "tail" coverage for the maximum time period that "tail" 
coverage is reasonably available in the marketplace. 

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. 
The contractor or its insurer must provide thirty (30) days' written notice to Recipient before 
cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal 
of the required insurance coverage(s). The Recipient shall immediately notify State of any 
change in insurance coverage.

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. 
Recipient shall obtain from the contractor a certificate(s) of insurance for all required insurance 
before the contractor performs under the Subcontract. The certificate(s) or an attached 
endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are endorsed on the policy as 
Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a "claims made" basis, the extended reporting period 
applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims made" coverage.

Recipient Insurance Requirements

GENERAL.

Recipient shall: i) obtain at the Recipient's expense the insurance specified under TYPES AND 
AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE 
OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance under 
this Agreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force and at its own expense 
throughout the duration of this Agreement. Recipient shall obtain the following insurance from 
insurance companies or entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue 
coverage in the State of Oregon and that are acceptable to State. Coverage shall be primary and 
non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance with the exception of Professional 
Liability and Workers' Compensation. Recipient shall pay for all deductibles, self-insurance retention 
and self-insurance, if any.



Page 16 of  19

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133

 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENT REVIEW.
Recipient agrees to periodic review of insurance requirements by State under this Agreement and 
to provide updated requirements as mutually agreed upon by Recipient and State.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

WORKERS COMPENSATION. 
All employers, including Recipient, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, shall 
comply with ORS 656.017 and shall provide Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage for 
those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2). The 
coverage shall include Employers liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 
must be included. 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. 
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be issued on an occurrence basis covering bodily 
injury, death, and property damage and shall include personal and advertising injury liability, 
products and completed operations and contractual liability coverage.  When work to be performed 
includes operations or activity within 50 feet of any railroad property, bridge, trestle, track, 
roadbed, tunnel, underpass or crossing, the Contractor shall provide the Contractual Liability 
- Railroads CG 24 17 endorsement, or equivalent, on the Commercial General Liability policy. 
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall not be less than the following amounts as determined 
by State:

Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.

Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000.

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY. 
Automobile Liability Insurance covering business-related automobile use on all owned, non-owned 
or hired vehicles for bodily injury and property. Automobile Liability Insurance shall not be less 
than the following amount as determined by State:

Coverage shall be written with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000. 

This coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance (with 
separate limits for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability).

EXCESS/UMBRELLA LIABILITY.
A combination of primary and Excess/Umbrella Liability Insurance may be used to meet the required 
limits of insurance.

ADDITIONAL INSURED. 
The liability insurance coverages, except Professional Liability or Workers' Compensation/
Employer's Liability, if included, must include the "State of Oregon, the Oregon Transportation 
Commission and the Department of Transportation, and their respective officers, 
members, agents and employees"  as an endorsed Additional Insured but only with respect 
to the Recipient's activities to be performed under this Agreement. Coverage shall be primary and 
non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

Additional Insured Endorsements on the Commercial General Liability shall be written on ISO Form 
CG 20 10 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations and ISO 
Form CG 20 37 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of completed operations. 
Additional Insured Endorsements shall be submitted with the Certificate(s) of Insurance and must 
be acceptable to the Recipient.

"TAIL" COVERAGE. 
If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as professional liability 
insurance, Recipient shall maintain either "tail" coverage or continuous "claims made" liability 



Page 17 of  19

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133

 
coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous "claims made" coverage is on or before 
the effective date of this Agreement, for a minimum of 24 months following the later of: (i) 
Recipient's completion and State's acceptance of all Services required under this Agreement or, 
(ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing 24-month requirement, if Recipient elects to maintain "tail" coverage and if the maximum 
time period "tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the 24-month period 
described above, then Recipient may request and State may grant approval of the maximum "tail" 
coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace. If State approval is granted, Recipient 
shall maintain "tail" coverage for the maximum time period that "tail" coverage is reasonably 
available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. 
Recipient or its insurer must provide 30 days' written notice to State before cancellation of, material 
change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance 
coverage(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. 
State shall obtain from Recipient a certificate(s) of insurance for all required insurance before the 
effective date of this Agreement. The certificate(s) or an attached endorsement must specify: i) all 
entities and individuals who are endorsed on the policy as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance 
on a "claims made" basis, the extended reporting period applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims 
made" coverage.

STATE ACCEPTANCE.
All insurance providers are subject to State acceptance.  If requested by State, Recipient shall 
provide complete copies of insurance policies, endorsements, self-insurance documents and related 
insurance documents to State's representatives responsible for verification of the insurance 
coverages required under this Exhibit C.



Page 18 of  19

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133

 
EXHIBIT D

 

Summary of Federal Requirements and Incorporating by Reference
Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for FTA Grants and

Cooperative Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal
Transit Administration Master Agreement ("Master Agreement")

 

Recipient and Recipient's subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s), at any tier, if any, 
must comply with all applicable federal requirements contained in the Certifications and Assurances 
available at www.transit.dot.gov.  The Certifications and Assurances, including as they may be 
changed during the term of this Agreement, are by this reference incorporated herein.

Recipient further agrees to comply with all applicable requirements included in the Master 
Agreement that is signed and attested to by State. This Master Agreement is incorporated by 
reference and made part of this Agreement. Said Master Agreement is available upon request from 
State by calling (503) 986-3300, or at www.transit.dot.gov. Without limiting the foregoing, the 
following is a summary of some requirements applicable to transactions covered by this Agreement 
and the funds described in Exhibit A:

1. Recipient shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 State 252, 42 U.S.C. § 
2000d) and the regulations of the United States Department of Transportation (49 CFR 21, 
Subtitle A). Recipient shall exclude no person on the grounds of race, religion, color, sex, 
age, national origin, or disability from the benefits of aid received under this Agreement. 
Recipient will report to State on at least an annual basis the following information: any active 
lawsuits or complaints, including dates, summary of allegation, status of lawsuit or complaint 
including whether the Parties entered into a consent decree.

2. Recipient shall comply with FTA regulations in Title 49 CFR 27 Nondiscrimination on the Basis 
of Disability in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance which implements 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 49 
CFR 37, and 49 CFR 38.

3. Recipient shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award 
and performance of any USDOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program 
or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. Recipient shall take all necessary and reasonable steps 
under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-
assisted contracts. Recipient's DBE program, if applicable, as required by 49 CFR part 26 
and as approved by USDOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation 
of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a 
violation of this agreement. Upon notification to State of its failure to carry out its approved 
program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under part 26 and may, 
in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the 
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

4. Recipient must include the following language in each subagreement Recipient signs with a 
subcontractor or subrecipient:

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, or sex in the performance of this Agreement. The contractor, subrecipient, 
or subcontractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award 
and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor, subrecipient, or 
subcontractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which 
may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as Recipient deems 
appropriate.

5. Recipient and contractors receiving in excess of $100,000 in federal funds, other than Indian 
tribes, must certify to State that they have not and will not use federal funds to pay for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal department or 
Agency, a member of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with 
obtaining any federal grant, cooperative agreement or any other federal award. If non-federal 



Page 19 of  19

Morrow County/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35133

 
funds have been used to support lobbying activities in connection with the Project, Recipient 
shall complete Standard Form LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying and submit the form 
to State at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs an event that requires 
disclosure. Restrictions on lobbying do not apply to influencing policy decisions. Examples of 
prohibited activities include seeking support for a particular application or bid and seeking 
a congressional earmark.



2021
Members Minimum Members: 7 Maximum Members: 11 Term allowence: 4 years

NAMES REPRESENTING TERM EXPIRATION

Vacancy Boardman/Hispanic 12/31/2020

Vacancy Boardman/Hispanic 12/31/2020

Vacancy Lexington/Community 12/31/2020

Aaron Palmquist

Chair

Irrigon/Community 12/31/2021

Betty Gray Ione/Senior 12/31/2021

"George"

Virginia Nairns

Heppner/Sr. & Disabled 12/31/2022

Karen Pettigrew Boardman/Sr. 12/31/2022

Mike Jones Heppner/Sr. 12/31/2022

Vancacy Community Development 12/31/2022

Katie Imes Trans. Coordinator 12/31/2022

Sheryll Bates

Vice Chair

Heppner/Community
12/31/2024

The Loop Morrow County Co Transportation

Special Transportation Fund (STF) Advisory Committee



2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Summer 2019
Oregon Legislature 
directs ODOT to 
consolidate the 
STF and STIF 
programs 

Fall 2019
ODOT establishes a 
Consolidation 
Advisory Committee 
(CAC) to inform 
statutory changes 
necessary to merge 
the programs

Summer 2020
Senate Bill 1601 is 
signed, incorporating 
recommendations 
from the CAC in the 
statutory language

Spring 2021
ODOT convenes a 
Rules Advisory 
Committee (RAC)  
to draft new 
consolidated STIF 
program rules

May-Oct. 2021
Rules Advisory 
Committee meets 
six times 

Nov.-Dec. 2021
Secretary of 
State public 
input process

Jan. 2022
OTC adoption 
target

Spring 2022
PTD develops 
solicitation 
materials: updates 
to the STIF Plan 
template, guidance, 
application 
instructions, and 
allocation estimate

Summer-Fall 2022
PTD conducts 
provider trainings 
on the new STIF 
program

January 2023 
STIF Plans due 
to ODOT

April 2023 
PTAC 
reviews 
submitted 
STIF Plans

May-June 2023 
OTC reviews 
award 
recommendations

July 1, 2023 
New STIF 
Plans are 
effective

STF/STIF Consolidation Timeline


	Draft STF Minutes 4-20-21
	Covid-19 Policy Update 6-16-21
	Car Shield Back View
	April to June Ride Totals
	216 Budget Summary June 30 2021
	225 Budget Summary June 30 2021
	504 Budget Summary June 30 2021
	The Loop Annual Operating Plan FY 2021-2022
	ODOT Agreement #34958 - STF
	Kayak (CTUIR) Purchased Service Agreement 2021-2023
	CareVan Purchased Service Agreement 2021-2023
	ODOT Agreement #35185 - 5310 
	ODOT Agreement #35133 Planning
	STF AC Members No Addresses
	Consolidation-Timeline-Graphic.pdf
	Slide Number 1




